
 
 
 

 
City Of Apopka 

Planning Commission 
Meeting Agenda 

February 14, 2017 
5:30 PM @ City Council Chambers 

 
I.     CALL TO ORDER 

 
If you wish to appear before the Planning Commission, please submit a “Notice of Intent to Speak” card to the 
Recording Secretary. 

 
II.    OPENING AND INVOCATION 
 
III.   APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

 
1 Approve minutes of the Planning Commission regular meeting held January 10, 2017. 
 
2 Approve minutes of the Land Development Code Workshop with the City Council and the Planning 

Commission held on January 25, 2017. 

 
IV.    PUBLIC HEARING: 

 
1. COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT ELEMENT – Amendment to the City of 

Apopka, Five-Year Capital Improvements Plan and incorporation into the Capital Improvement 
Element. 

 
2. COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – LARGE SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – Owned by 

Project Orlando, LLC, from Rural Settlement (0-1 du/5 ac) to Residential Very Low Suburban (0-
2 du/ac), for property located north of Ponkan Road, east of Golden Gem Road. (Parcel ID #s: 
24-20-27-0000-00-005; 24-20-27-0000-00-076) 

 
3. COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – Owned by 

Apopka Holdings, LLC, from “County” Low Density Residential (0-4 du/ac) to “City” Office (Max. 
0.3 FAR), for property located at 1109 South Park Avenue and 157 Rand Court. (Parcel ID #s: 
15-21-28-7540-000-771; 15-21-28-7540-00-772) 

 
4. CHANGE OF ZONING – Owned by Apopka Holdings, LLC, from “County” R-3 (Residential) to 

“City” Planned Unit Development (PUD/PO-I), for property located at 1109 South Park Avenue 
and 157 Rand Court. (Parcel ID #s: 15-21-28-7540-000-771; 15-21-28-7540-00-772) 

 
5. COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – SMALL SCALE – ADMINISTRATIVE FUTURE LAND USE 

AMENDMENT – Owned by Smith Family Revocable Trust, applicant is the City of Apopka, from 
“County” Rural (1 du/10 ac) to “City” Agriculture (1 du/5 ac), for property located east of Mt. 
Plymouth Road, south of Boch Road.  (Parcel ID #s: 06-20-28-0000-00-047; 06-20-28-0000-00-
066) 

 

1



PLANNING COMMISSION 
AGENDA - FEBRUARY 14, 2017 
Page 2 

 
6. 2017-1 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – Case No. 2017-1-3 & 4 - Owned by Smith Family 

Revocable Living Trust, from “County” A-2 (ZIP) (0-1 du/10 ac) (Agriculture) to “City” AG (0-1 
du/5 ac) (Agriculture), for properties located east of Mt. Plymouth Road, south of Boch Road. 
(Parcel ID #s: 06-20-28-0000-00-047; 06-20-28-0000-00-066) 

 
7. 2017-1 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – Case No. 2017-1-1 - Owned by Mary M. Ashburn 

Ballings, from “County” A-2 (ZIP) (0-1 du/10 ac) (Agriculture) to “City” AG (0-1 du/5 ac) 
(Agriculture), for property located east of Mt. Plymouth Road, south of Boch Road. (Parcel ID #s: 
06-20-28-0000-00-029) 

 
8. 2017-1 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – Case No. 2017-1-2 - Owned by TIIFT, from “County” A-

1 (ZIP) (0-1 du/10 ac) (Agriculture) to “City” AG (0-1 du/5 ac) (Agriculture), for property located 
west of Mt. Plymouth Road, north of Swain Road. (Parcel ID #s: 05-20-28-0476-00-040) 

 
V.     SITE PLANS: 

 
1. FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN - COOPER PALMS COMMERCE CENTER (LOT 5) – Owned by 

Property Industrial Enterprises, LLC and located south of Cooper Palms Parkway, east of South 
Bradshaw Road. (Parcel ID #s: 09-21-28-0868-01-260; 09-21-28-0868-01-250; 09-21-28-0868-
01-240; 09-21-28-0868-01-230; 09-21-28-1675-00-110; 09-21-28-1675-00-120) 

 
2. FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN - COOPER PALMS COMMERCE CENTER (LOTS 10 AND 11) – 

Owned by Property Industrial Enterprises, LLC and located south of West 2nd Street and west of 
South Hawthorne Avenue. (Parcel ID #s: 09-21-28-0868-01-260; 09-21-28-0868-01-250; 09-21-
28-0868-01-240; 09-21-28-0868-01-230; 09-21-28-1675-00-110; 09-21-28-1675-00-120) 

 
3. PLAT – EMERSON PARK TOWNHOMES - Owned by Pulte Group, c/o Doug Hoffman, and 

located at 1701 Ocoee Apopka Road. (Parcel ID #: 20-21-28-0000-00-001)  

 
4. PLAT – ORCHID ESTATES - Owned by JTD Land at Orchid Estates, LLC, and located south of 

Kelly Park Road, west of Jason Dwelley Parkway.  (Parcel ID #s: 18-20-28-0000-00-055; 18-20-
28-0000-00-059; 18-20-28-0000-00-117 Portion)  

 
5. PLAT – SANDPIPER ROAD SUBDIVISION - Owned by Florida Land Trust #111, ZDA at 

Sandpiper, LLC, and located north of East Votaw Road, west of North Thompson Road.  (Parcel 
ID #s: 03-21-28-0000-00-023; 03-21-28-0000-00-119; 03-21-28-0000-00-015; 03-21-28-0000-00-
046; 03-21-28-0000-00-073; 03-21-28-0000-00-072; 03-21-28-0000-00-022; 03-21-28-0000-00-
047; 03-21-28-0000-00-131; 03-21-28-0000-00-106)  

 
VI.    OLD BUSINESS: 
 
VII.   NEW BUSINESS: 
 
VIII.  ADJOURNMENT: 
 

*********************************************************************************************************** 
All interested parties may appear and be heard with respect to this agenda.  Please be advised that, under state law, if you decide to appeal 
any decision made by the City Council with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, you will need a record of the 
proceedings, and that, for such purpose, you may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes a 
testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.   The City of Apopka does not provide a verbatim record.    
 
In accordance with the American with Disabilities Act (ADA), persons with disabilities needing a special accommodation to participate in any 
of these proceedings should contact the City Clerk's Office at 120 East Main Street, Apopka, FL  32703, telephone (407) 703-1704, no less 
than 48 hours prior to the proceeding. 
  

2



PLANNING COMMISSION 
AGENDA - FEBRUARY 14, 2017 
Page 3 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 
1 Approve minutes of the Planning Commission regular meeting held January 10, 2017. 
  

3



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING HELD ON JANUARY 10, 2017, AT 
5:30 P.M. IN THE CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, APOPKA, FLORIDA. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT: James Greene, Tony Foster, Linda Laurendeau, Roger Simpson, and John 
Sprinkle 
 
ABSENT: Melvin Birdsong, Jose Molina, Orange County Public Schools (Non-voting) 
 
OTHERS PRESENT:  James Hitt – Community Development Director, David Moon, AICP - Planning 
Manager, Andrew Hand – City Attorney, Kyle Wilkes, AICP – Planner II, Robert Sargent – Public 
Information Officer, Christine Gates, William J. Gates, Joseph M. Gates, Adeline Collot, George Kramer, 
Ronnie Phillips, Chris Louden, Michelle Bell, Suzanne Kidd, Luis J. Cordero, Shalette Daugherty, John 
Peery, and Jeanne Green – Community Development Department Office Manager/Recording Secretary. 
 
OPENING AND INVOCATION:  Mr. Greene called the meeting to order and asked for a moment of 
silent prayer.  The Pledge of Allegiance followed. 
 
ELECTION OF OFFICERS: 
 
Chairperson: 
 
MOTION: Linda Laurendeau nominated James Greene as Chairperson of the Planning 

Commission and seconded by Tony Foster. Aye votes were cast by James Greene, Tony 
Foster, Linda Laurendeau, Roger Simpson, and John Sprinkle (5-0).  

 
Vice - Chairperson: 
 
MOTION: Tony Foster nominated Melvin Birdsong as Vice-Chairperson of the Planning 

Commission and seconded by Linda Laurendeau. Aye votes were cast by James 
Greene, Tony Foster, Linda Laurendeau, Roger Simpson, and John Sprinkle (5-0).  

 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: Chairperson Greene asked if there were any corrections or additions to the 
regular meeting minutes of December 13, 2016, at 5:30 p.m. minutes.   
 
Motion:      Linda Laurendeau made a motion to approve the Planning Commission minutes from 

the regular meeting held on December 13 2016, at 5:30 p.m. and seconded by Roger 
Simpson. Aye votes were cast by James Greene, Tony Foster, Linda Laurendeau, 
Roger Simpson and John Sprinkle (5-0). 

   
LEGISLATIVE - COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – LARGE SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE 
AMENDMENT – JOSEPH & SWANA GATES AND OAK ROYAL PROPERTIES, LLC - 
Chairperson Greene stated this is a request to recommend approval of the Large Scale Future Land Use 
amendment from Office (Max. 0.3 FAR) and Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) to Mixed Use (0-15 du/ac and/or 
1.0 FAR) for the properties owned by Joseph and Swana Gates and Oak Royal Properties, LLC, located 
east of Ocoee-Apopka Road, north of Keene Road; and recommend approval to transmit to the Florida 
Department of Economic Opportunity for review. 
 
Staff Presentation:  Kyle Wilkes, AICP, Planner II, stated this is a request to recommend approval of the 

Large Scale Future Land Use amendment from Office (Max. 0.3 FAR) and Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) to 

Mixed Use (0-15 du/ac and/or 1.0 FAR) for the properties owned by Joseph and Swana Gates and Oak 

Royal Properties, LLC, located east of Ocoee-Apopka Road, north of Keene Road; and to recommend 

approval to transmit to the Florida Department of Economic Opportunity for review.  The Applicant is 

Littlejohn Engineering.  The existing use are container nurseries and single-family residential home.  The 

current zoning is PO/I (Professional Office/Institutional) & AG (Agriculture).  Once approval has been 

received from the State, a change of zoning from PO/I and AG to Mixed-EC (Mixed Use Employment 

Center) will be brought before the Planning Commission and City Council for consideration.  The tract size 4



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING HELD ON JANUARY 10, 2017, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 

2 

 

is 22.4 +/- acres.  The existing maximum allowable development is 518 units.  The proposed maximum 

allowable development will be 975,744 sq. ft. of non-residential uses and 336 multi-family units. 

 

The subject parcels were annexed into the City of Apopka on December 5, 2001 through Ordinance 1421. 

The applicant requests a future land use designation of Mixed Use.  The request is compatible with 

surrounding future land use designations and adjacent uses.  As a “Large-Scale” Future Land use 

Amendment (i.e., ten or more acres), this application will be transferred to State agencies for consistency 

review with State policies.  Ocoee-Apopka Road will likely need to be widened to a four lane, divided road 

in the future, likely requiring land from the western edge of the subject site to accommodate the future 

improvements. 

 

The proposed use of the property is compatible with the character of the surrounding area, is within close 

proximity to the SR 429/Ocoee Apopka Road interchange, and is consistent with the Mixed Use Land Use 

designation.  City planning staff supports the FLUM amendment given the consistency with the 

Comprehensive Plan policies listed below and the intent of the Ocoee Apopka Road Small Area Study (see 

Land Use Analysis below).   Site development cannot exceed the intensity allowed by the Future Land Use 

policies.  

 
Future Land Use Element 
 

1. Policy 3.1.r The primary intent of the Mixed Use land use category is to allow a mixture of 
residential, office, commercial, industrial, recreation, institutional uses and public facilities 
uses…This mix of land uses may occur on a single parcel or multiple parcels in the form of: a 
permitted single use; a vertical combination of different permitted uses; or a horizontal mix of 
different permitted uses. 
 
The applicant’s wish to develop the properties for a vertical mix or commercial and residential 
development is consistent with Policy 3.1.r. 
 

2. Policy 3.2 Development and redevelopment shall be integrated with the adjacent land uses through: 
(1) the creation of like uses; or (2) creation of complementary uses; or (3) mitigation of adverse 
impacts. 
 
The proposed use for the subject properties as mixed use residential/non-residential development is 
consistent with the current and future proposed development of the surrounding area.  Mixed Use 
future land use designation is immediately adjacent to the north (Emerson Park traditional 
neighborhood-style residential development), as well as High Density Residential across Ocoee 
Apopka Road to the west.  In addition, the proposed development is consistent with the small study 
area recommendations for these uses. 

 
Transportation Element 
 

1. Policy 4.2 The City of Apopka shall promote, through the implementation of programs such as 
mixed-use land development, projects that support reduced travel demand, shorter trip lengths and 
balanced trip demand. 
 
The proposed Commercial future land use designation and subsequent mixed-use residential and 
non-residential development would support existing and proposed residential development, the 
future Florida Hospital Apopka campus, as well as ancillary professional office development within 
the Ocoee Apopka Road Small Area Study.  The study area recommendations promote the 
development of walkable, village-style development within the area surrounding the new hospital 
campus. The applicant’s proposal would be consistent with Policy 4.2 by providing support 
office/retail for adjacent residential communities and employment and reduce trips by providing a 5



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING HELD ON JANUARY 10, 2017, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 

3 

 

vertical mix of uses.  

 

The property is located within the boundaries of Ocoee-Apopka Road Small Area Study.  Prepared in 

February 2015, this study recommends mixed-use town center or multi-family development for the subject 

site. A Mixed Use Future Land Use Designation supports this recommendation.  A copy of the concept 

plan\vision plan for the Ocoee-Apopka Road Study is provided with the support material. 

 

An executed capacity enhancement agreement with Orange County Public Schools will be required prior 

to adoption of the future land use amendment. 

 

The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any public hearing or advisory board.  The 

City properly notified Orange County on December 9, 2016. 

 

The Development Review Committee recommends approval to transmit a change in Future Land Use from 

Office (max 0.3 FAR) to Mixed Use for the property owned by Joseph & Swana Gates and Oak Royal 

Properties, LLC, subject to the information and findings in the staff report. 

 

Staff recommends that the Planning Commission find the Commercial Future Land Use Designation 

consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and recommend a change in Future Land Use Designation from 

Office and Residential Low Density to Mixed Use for the properties owned by Joseph & Swana Gates and 

Oak Royal Properties, LLC, subject to the information and findings in the staff report. 

 

This item is considered legislative.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into and made a 

part of the minutes of this meeting. 

 

In response to a question by Ms. Laurendeau, Mr. Moon stated that as a part of the development plan 

process, a soil study will be required to identify specific karst features. 

 
Chairperson Greene opened the meeting for public hearing.    
 

In response to questions by Suzanne Kidd, 1260 Lexington Parkway, Apopka, George Kramer of Littlejohn 

Engineering Associates, stated that the increase to the floor area ratio does not affect the green space.  As 

far as developing the property they will be following the guidelines set forth in the Ocoee Apopka Road 

Small Area Study.  The change of land use is the first step of many steps to be able to develop anything on 

the property. 

 

Shalette Daugherty, 1455 West Keene Road, Apopka, expressed her concerns regarding the impacts to her 

equine stable and riding business located adjacent to the subject property. 

 

In response to comments by Ms. Daugherty, staff asked that she leave her contact information and staff will 

include her on the list for notifications of public hearings as the project progresses. 

 

Mr. Moon stated that based on the requested Mixed Use future land use the zoning for the property will 

probably be Planned Unit Development or Mixed Use.  The applicant will be encouraged to hold community 

meetings before the public hearings are held.  This will allow the applicant to present to the area property 

owners their proposal and to get feedback.   

 

Mr. Kramer stated that they had sent out notices as required. 

 

Mr. Foster reminded the petitioner about their due diligence when notifying the abutting public. 6



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING HELD ON JANUARY 10, 2017, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 

4 

 

 
With no one else wishing to speak, Chairperson Greene closed the public hearing.  
 
Motion:   Linda Laurendeau made a motion to find the application consistent with the Apopka 

Comprehensive Plan; Ocoee Apopka Road Small Area Study; and the Land 
Development Code; and to recommend approval of the Large Scale Future Land Use 
Amendment from Office (Max. 0.3 FAR) and Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) to Mixed Use 
(0-15 du/ac and/or 1.0 FAR) for the properties owned by Joseph and Swana Gates and 
Oak Royal Properties, LLC, located east of Ocoee-Apopka Road, north of Keene Road; 
and to recommend approval to transmit to the Florida Department of Economic 
Opportunity for review.  Motion seconded by Roger Simpson.   

 
In response to a question by Mr. Sprinkle, James Hitt, FRA, Community Development Director, stated that 

St. Johns River Water Management District permits water usage by local governments.  The City has been 

issued a Consumptive Use Permit (CUP) by SJRWMD and reviews the permits every five to ten years. 

 

Mr. Moon stated that SJRWMD would be one of the state agencies that will be reviewing the Large Scale 

Future Land Use amendment to ensure compliance with the CUP Permit. 
 

Aye votes were cast by James Greene, Tony Foster, Linda Laurendeau, Roger 
Simpson, and John Sprinkle (5-0).  (Vote taken by poll.) 

 
SWEARING-IN – Attorney Hand swore-in staff, petitioners, and affected parties for the quasi-judicial 
items to be discussed. 
 
LEGISLATIVE - COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE 
AMENDMENT – ADAMS BROTHERS CONSTRUCTION - Chairperson Greene stated this is a 
request to recommend approval of the Small Scale Future Land Use amendment from “County” Industrial 
to “City” Industrial (Max. 0.6 FAR) for the property owned by Adams Brothers Construction and located 
south of East 13th Street, west of Sheeler Avenue. 
 
Staff Presentation:  Mr. Wilkes stated this is a request to recommend approval of the Comprehensive Plan 
Small Scale Future Land Use amendment from “County” Industrial to “City” Industrial (Max. 0.6 FAR) for 
the property owned by Adams Brothers Construction and located south of East 13th Street, west of Sheeler 
Avenue. The existing use is a modular office, single-family residential and vacant commercial.  The current 
zoning is “County” C-3 (ZIP) and a change of zoning is being processed along with the future land use 
amendment to “City” I-1 (Restricted Industrial).  The proposed development will be Industrial, Commercial 
or Office Development that is consistent with the I-1 (Restricted Industrial) zoning.  The tract size is 3 +/- 
acres.  The existing and proposed maximum allowable development is 78,408 Sq. Ft.  
 
The subject parcel was annexed into the City of Apopka on November 16, 2016, through the adoption of 
Ordinances No. 2528.  The proposed Small-Scale Future Land Use Amendment is being requested by the 
owner/applicant.  Pursuant to Florida law, properties containing less than ten acres are eligible to be 
processed as a small-scale amendment.  Such process does not require review by State planning agencies. 
 
A request to assign an I-1 (Restricted Industrial) zoning category to the Property is being processed in 
conjunction with this future land use amendment request for an Industrial designation.  The FLUM 
amendment application covers approximately 3 acres, exceeding the minimum development site area of 
15,000 sq. ft. The property owner owns the property immediately adjacent to the east of the subject 
properties, and intends to use the recently-annexed parcels for light industrial as part of their existing 
construction business. 
 
In conjunction with state requirements, staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that 
adequate public facilities exist to support this land use change (see attached Land Use Report). 

7



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING HELD ON JANUARY 10, 2017, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 

5 

 

 
The existing and proposed use of the property is consistent with the Industrial Future Land Use designation 
and the City’s proposed I-1 Zoning designation.  Site development cannot exceed the intensity allowed by 
the Future Land Use policies. 
 
Because this Future Land Use Amendment represents a change to a non-residential designation, notification 
of Orange County Public Schools is not required. 
 
The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any public hearing or advisory board.  The 
City properly notified Orange County on December 9, 2016. 
 
The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive 
Plan and  recommends approval of the change in Future Land Use from “County” Industrial to “City” 
Industrial (0.6 FAR) for the property owned Adams Brothers Construction. 
 
The recommended Motion is to find the future land use amendment consistent with the Comprehensive 
Plan and recommend adoption of the small scale future land use amendment from “County” Industrial to 
“City” Industrial (max 0.60 FAR), for properties owned by Adams Brothers Construction. 
 
This item is considered legislative.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into and made a 
part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 
Chairperson Greene opened the meeting for public hearing.   With no one wishing to speak, Chairperson 
Greene closed the public hearing.  
 
Motion:   Tony Foster made a motion to find the application consistent with the Apopka 

Comprehensive Plan and the Land Development Code; and to recommend approval of 
the Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment from “County” Industrial to “City” 
Industrial (Max. 0.6 FAR) for the property owned by Adams Brothers Construction 
and located south of East 13th Street, west of Sheeler Avenue.  Motion seconded by John 
Sprinkle.  Aye votes were cast by James Greene, Tony Foster, Linda Laurendeau, 
Roger Simpson, and John Sprinkle (5-0).  (Vote taken by poll.) 

 
QUASI-JUDICIAL - CHANGE OF ZONING – ADAMS BROTHERS CONSTRUCTION - 
Chairperson Greene stated this is a request to recommend approval of the Change of Zoning from “County” 
C-3 (ZIP) to “City” I-1 (Restricted Industrial) for the property owned by Adams Brothers Construction and 
located south of East 13th Street, west of Sheeler Avenue. 
 
Chairperson Greene asked if there were any affected parties in attendance that wished to speak. No one 
spoke. 
 
Chairperson Greene asked if the Commission members had any ex parte communications to divulge 
regarding this item.  No one spoke. 
 
Staff Presentation:  Mr. Wilkes stated this is a request to recommend approval of the Change in Zoning from 
“County” C-3 (ZIP) to “City” I-1 (Restricted Industrial) for the property owned by Adams Brothers 
Construction and located south of East 13th Street, west of Sheeler Avenue. The existing use is a modular 
office, single-family residential and vacant commercial.  The current future land use is “County” Industrial 
and a Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment to “City” Industrial (Max. 0.6 FAR) is being processed 
along with the change of zoning.  The proposed development will be Industrial, Commercial or Office 
Development that is consistent with the I-1 (Restricted Industrial) zoning.  The tract size is 3 +/- acres.  The 
existing and proposed maximum allowable development is 78,408 Sq. Ft.  
 
The subject parcels were annexed into the City of Apopka on November 16, 2016 through the adoption of 
Ordinances No. 2528.  The proposed change of zoning is being requested by the owner/applicant.  Presently, 8



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING HELD ON JANUARY 10, 2017, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 

6 

 

the subject property has not yet been assigned a “City” zoning category.  Applicant is requesting the City to 
assign a zoning classification of I-1 (Restricted Industrial) to the property.  
 
A request to assign a change of zoning to I-1 (Restricted Industrial) is compatible to the adjacent zoning 
classifications and with the general character of abutting properties and surrounding area.  The property 
owner is requesting the I-1 zoning classification to accommodate the use of the property for light industrial, 
commercial or office development allowed under the I-1 zoning district.  This use is consistent with the 
proposed Industrial Future Land Use Designation, proposed zoning district and compatible with the general 
character of surrounding zoning and uses.  The change of zoning application covers approximately 3 acres.  
 
In conjunction with state requirements, staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that 
adequate public facilities exist to support this land use change (see attached Zoning Report). 
 
The proposed use of the property is consistent with the Industrial (max 0.60 FAR) Future Land Use 
designation and the City’s proposed I-1 (Restricted Industrial) Zoning classification.  Site development 
cannot exceed the intensity allowed by the Future Land Use policies. 
 
The proposed rezoning is to a non-residential zoning district and, therefore, a capacity enhancement 
agreement with OCPS is not necessary. 
 
The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any public hearing or advisory board.  The 
City properly notified Orange County on December 9, 2016 
 
The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive 

Plan and the Land Development Code recommends adoption of the change in Zoning from “County” C-3 

(ZIP) to “City” I-1 (Restricted Industrial), subject to the adoption of the associated small scale future land 

use amendment, for the property owned by Adams Brothers Construction. 

 

The recommended Motion is to find the proposed rezoning consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and 

Land Development Code and to recommend a change of zoning from “County” C-3 (ZIP) to “City” I-1 

(Restricted Industrial), for property owned by Adams Brothers Construction, subject to the adoption of the 

associated small scale future land use amendment. 
 
This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into and made 
a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 
In response to a question by Mr. Sprinkle, Mr. Wilkes stated the applicant will continue the current 
industrial uses on the site. 
 
Petitioner Presentation:  None. 
 
Affected Party Presentation: None. 
 
Chairperson Greene opened the meeting for public hearing.   With no one wishing to speak, Chairperson 
Greene closed the public hearing.  
 
Motion:   Tony Foster made a motion to find the application consistent with the Apopka 

Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code, and recommend adoption of the 
change of zoning from “County” C-3 (ZIP) to “City” I-1 (Restricted Industrial) for 
property owned by Adams Brothers Construction and located south of East 13th Street, 
west of Sheeler Avenue.  Motion seconded by Linda Laurendeau.  Aye votes were cast 
by James Greene, Tony Foster, Linda Laurendeau, Roger Simpson, and John Sprinkle 
(5-0).  (Vote taken by poll.) 

 9



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING HELD ON JANUARY 10, 2017, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 

7 

 

QUASI-JUDICIAL – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN/PLAT – MAGNOLIA COMMERCE 
CENTER - Chairperson Greene stated this is a request to recommend approval of the Final Development 
Plan and Plat for Magnolia Commerce Center owned by Vistas at Waters Edge owned by Property Industrial 
Enterprises, LLC, and located at 445 West 1st Street. 
 
Chairperson Greene asked if there were any affected parties in attendance that wished to speak.  No one 
spoke. 
 
Chairperson Greene asked if the Commission members had any ex parte communications to divulge 
regarding this item.  No one spoke. 
 
Staff Presentation:  David Moon, AICP, Planning Manager, stated this is a request to recommend approval 

of the Final Development Plan and Plat for Magnolia Commerce Center owned by Property Industrial 

Enterprises, LLC, and located at 445 West 1st Street.  The Applicant is Michael R. Cooper and the Engineer 

is Kenneth H. Ehlers, P.E.  The land use is Commercial and the zoning is C-3.  The existing use is vacant 

land and the proposed use is Commercial Warehouses (20,000 S.F.) w/ Office Space (2,455 S.F.).  The tract 

size is 2.43 +/- acres and the combined building size is 22,445 sq. ft. (Three (3) 7,485 S.F. Buildings) with 

a Floor Area Ratio (FAR) of 0.21. 
 
The Magnolia Commerce Center - Final Development Plan proposes to construct three (3) 7485 S.F. 

buildings for a total of 22,445 square feet of warehouse and office space.  A re-plat of the property will 

occur to eliminate any future potential conflict with the current antiquated plat and the previously vacated 

public right-of-way abutting the railroad track. 

       

A total of 53 parking spaces are provided of which 3 are reserved as a handicapped parking spaces.  Access 

to the site is provided by a driveway cut along Bradshaw Road and 1st Street.   

 

The design of the building exterior shall be consistent with Section 4.2.1 of the Development Design 

Guidelines Commercial Design Standards. 

   

Stormwater run-off and drainage will be accommodated by an on-site retention pond through a cross access 

easement agreement.  The off-site stormwater management system will be designed according to standards 

set forth in the Land Development Code.  

 

A ten-foot landscape buffer is provided along Bradshaw Road and West 1st Street. The applicant has 

provided a detailed landscape and irrigation plan for the property. The planting materials and irrigation 

system design are consistent with the water-efficient landscape standards set forth in Ordinance No. 2069.   

 

Total inches on-site: 0 

Total number of specimen trees: 0 

Total inches removed 0 

Total inches retained: 0 

Total inches required: 162 

Total inches replaced: 162 

Total inches post development: 162 
 

The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the Magnolia Commerce Center – Final 

Development Plan and plat, subject to the findings of the staff report. 

 

The recommended motion is to find the application consistent with the Apopka Comprehensive Plan and 

Land Development Code, and recommend approval of the Magnolia Commerce Center – Final 10



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING HELD ON JANUARY 10, 2017, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 

8 

 

Development Plan and plat, subject to the findings of the staff report. 

 

This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into and made 

a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

Petitioner Presentation: None. 

Affected Party Presentation:  None. 
 
Chairperson Greene opened the meeting for public hearing.   With no one wishing to speak, Chairperson 
Greene closed the public hearing.  
 
Motion:   John Sprinkle made a motion to find the application consistent with the Apopka 

Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code, and recommend approval of the 
Final Development Plan and Plat for Magnolia Commerce Center owned by Property 
Industrial Enterprises, LLC, and located at 445 West 1st Street.  Motion seconded by 
Tony Foster.  Aye votes were cast by James Greene, Tony Foster, Linda Laurendeau, 
Roger Simpson, and John Sprinkle (5-0).  (Vote taken by poll.) 

 
QUASI-JUDICIAL – REPLAT – COOPER PALMS LOTS 10 AND 11 - Chairperson Greene stated 

this is a request to recommend approval of the Replat of Cooper Palms Lots 10 and 11 owned by Property 

Industrial Enterprises, LLC and located south of West 2nd Street and west of South Hawthorne Avenue. 
 
Chairperson Greene asked if there were any affected parties in attendance that wished to speak.  No one 
spoke. 
 
Chairperson Greene asked if the Commission members had any ex parte communications to divulge 
regarding this item.  No one spoke. 
 
Staff Presentation:  Mr. Moon stated this is a request to recommend approval of the Replat of Cooper Palms 

Lots 10 and 11 owned by Property Industrial Enterprises, LLC and located south of West 2nd Street and 

west of South Hawthorne Avenue. The Applicant is Michael R. Cooper and the Surveyor is Nieto-Whittaker 

Surveying, LLC c/o Ralph A. Nieto, P.S.M.  The land use is Industrial and the zoning is I-1.  The existing 

use is Vacant Land and the proposed use is Industrial Warehouses.  The tract size is 2.81 +/- acres. 

 

The Cooper Palms Lots 10 & 11 is proposing to combine lots 23, 24, 25 & 26 of Block “A” Bradshaw and 

Thompson’s addition into two individual parcels being incorporated into the Cooper Palms Plat.   The 

applicant will be bring forth a Final Development Plan in the upcoming months for the construction of an 

industrial warehouses with offices. 

 

The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the Cooper Palms Lots 10 & 11 – Plat, 

subject to the findings of this staff report. 

 

The recommended motion is to find the application consistent with the Apopka Comprehensive Plan and 

Land Development Code, and recommend approval of the Cooper Palms Lots 10 & 11 – Plat, subject to the 

findings of this staff report. 
 

This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into and made 

a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

Petitioner Presentation: None. 
11



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING HELD ON JANUARY 10, 2017, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 

9 

 

Affected Party Presentation:  None. 
 
Chairperson Greene opened the meeting for public hearing.   With no one wishing to speak, Chairperson 
Greene closed the public hearing.  
 
Motion:   Linda Laurendeau made a motion to find the application consistent with the Apopka 

Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code, and recommend approval of the 
Replat of Cooper Palms Lots 10 and 11 owned by Property Industrial Enterprises, LLC 
and located south of West 2nd Street and west of South Hawthorne Avenue. Motion 
seconded by Roger Simpson. Aye votes were cast by James Greene, Tony Foster, Linda 
Laurendeau, Roger Simpson, and John Sprinkle (5-0).  (Vote taken by poll.) 

 
OLD BUSINESS: None. 
 
NEW BUSINESS:  Chairperson Greene announced that there will be two workshops for the City Council 
and the Planning Commission held in January.  The first will be held on Wednesday, January 18, 2017, 
from 5:30 p.m. to 6:30 p.m. in the City Council chambers and is a review of the quasi-judicial process by 
the City Attorney.  The second workshop is scheduled for Wednesday, January 25, 2017, from 4:00 p.m. to 
6:00 p.m. at the VFW Community Center and will comprise a presentation from Clarion, the City’s 
consultant working on the Land Development Code amendment. 
 
Mr. Hitt stated that the workshop on January 18th will be a review of the Sunshine Laws and quasi-judicial 
procedures with the City Attorney.  The workshop on January 25th will be an opportunity for the 
Commission to provide feedback on the Land Development Code amendment.  One issue that staff will be 
looking at revising the section regarding the development review process.  For instance if an applicant has 
a development plan that meets all of the City codes and regulations, there is no reason to not administratively 
approve the development rather than having them bring their projects before the Planning Commission or 
City Council.  This will save time and money. 
 
ADJOURNMENT:   The meeting was adjourned at 6:21 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
James Greene, Chairperson 
 
 
 
 
James K. Hitt  
Community Development Director 

 

12



PLANNING COMMISSION 
AGENDA - FEBRUARY 14, 2017 
Page 13 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 
2 Approve minutes of the Land Development Code Workshop with the City Council and the Planning Commission held 

on January 25, 2017. 
  

13



 
MINUTES OF THE CITY COUNCIL AND PLANNING COMMISSION WORKSHOP HELD ON 
JANUARY 25, 2017, AT 4:00 P.M. AT THE CITY OF APOPKA COMMUNITY CENTER. 
 
PRESENT:  Mayor Joseph Kilsheimer 
   Commissioner Billie Dean 
   Commissioner Diane Velazquez 
   Commissioner Doug Bankson 
   City Administrator Glenn Irby 
   James Greene, Planning Commission 
   Melvin Birdsong, Planning Commission 
   Tony Foster, Planning Commission 
   Linda Laurendeau, Planning Commission 
   Jose Molina, Planning Commission 
   John Sprinkle, Planning Commission 
 
PRESS:  Theresa Sargent – The Apopka Chief 
 
STAFF:  James Hitt, FRA-RA – Community Development Director, David Moon, AICP - Planning 
Manager, Kyle Wilkes, AICP – Planner II, Elizabeth Florence – Planner, Linda Goff – City Clerk, Robert 
Sargent – Public Information Officer, Rob Hippler – IT Director, Mike Brown – Desktop Support Engineer, 
and Jeanne Green – Community Development Department Office Manager/Recording Secretary. 
 
Mayor Kilsheimer called the meeting to order and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
INTRODUCTION: James Hitt, Community Development Director, introduced Clarion Associates Project 
Director, Craig Richardson.  He explained that Clarion would be working on updating the City’s Land 
Development Code to bring it up to date in order to better implement with City’s Comprehensive Plan 2030 
and Grow Apopka 2025 Vision Plan.  The update will also ensure the City’s development regulations are 
internally consistent, modernized, and more in line with contemporary zoning best practices. 
 
CLARION ASSOCIATES: 
 
Mr. Richardson stated that Clarion Associates is a national land-use consulting firm with significant national 
and Florida experience of updating development codes.  They are experts in form, use, and performance-
based development codes.  They have significant experience with updating codes in mature, built 
communities.  They are national leaders in zoning best practices and sustainable development regulations.  
The Clarion team provides excellent communicators and skilled facilitators.   
 
Mr. Richardson introduced the Clarion project team of Pete Sullivan, AICP - Senior Associate, David 
Henning – Associate, and Chris Peterson – Marketing and Special Projects.  He stated that he and Mr. 
Henning are attorneys; however, they are not a law firm.  Next, Mr. Richardson introduced Tara Salmieri, 
AICP, President of PlanActive Studio located in Orlando. 
 

Ms. Salmieri stated her company, PlanActive Studios, is a woman owned company that provides a broad 

range of technical analysis and tools for each municipality that will inform the community, staff and elected 

officials of potential conflicts in their regulations, plans and manuals. PlanActive's goal is to provide 

solutions that are easy to understand while developing implementable strategies to meet the vision and 

desires of each community. 

 

Mr. Richardson went over the work program and schedule for the project.   

 

Task 1:  The first task is to review all relevant background materials, including but not limited to, all 

relevant planning documents, other documents that provide policy direction, the existing Land 

Development Code (LDC), other relevant regulations, the zoning map, administrative rules and 
14



MINUTES OF THE CITY COUNCIL AND PLANNING COMMISSION WORKSHOP HELD ON JANUARY 25, 2017, AT 4:00 P.M. AT THE CITY OF 
APOPKA COMMUNITY CENTER. 

 

 

2 

 

interpretations of the current LDC, examples of approved development permits, and other documents 

identified by City staff. 

 

After completion of the background review, Clarion meets with City staff; conduct a kick-off meeting that 

includes stakeholders, such as residents and business owners, as well as elected and appointed officials; and 

take a tour of the city.  Prior to meeting with City staff, Clarion prepared surveys for them to fill out that 

will provide a framework for input in a consistent fashion.   

 

A project website, www.apopkazoning.com, has been set up to provide information about the project, the 

schedule, and public involvement opportunities.  New work products will be placed on the website when 

available for public review.  The website will serve as a tool through which the public can comment on the 

process and the work products as they are completed. 

 

Task 2:  Task 2 will be the assessment of the Land Development Code based on the information gathered 

during Task 1.  The LDC assessment will synthesize and refine the key issues; recommend solutions to 

address the key issues; and provide a detailed outline of the rewritten LDC structure if the key issues and 

solutions are addressed as recommended.  The assessment will consist of a Diagnosis and an Annotated 

Outline. 

 

The Diagnosis identifies the key issues that need to be addressed in the rewrite.  The Annotated Outline 

provides the community an opportunity to review the overall structure of the proposed revisions before the 

actual drafting occurs.  It will include an article-by-article outline of the rewritten LDC and an explanation 

of the purpose and nature of each article and major sections in layperson’s language. 

 

There will be meetings with the City Council and Planning Commission, as appropriate, to provide a public 

forum for any questions or comments on the assessment. 

 

Task 3:  Based on the Assessment and the public input and directions received, a draft of the Land 

Development Code will be prepared that is user-friendly and includes the agreed upon changes to the code.  

The draft will follow the Annotated Outline and will be clear, concise and drafted with the goal of efficient 

administration.  It will emphasize the use of graphics, tables, and charts to explain zoning and land use 

concepts.   

 

Based on the current set of design guidelines, the draft will include a basic set of design standards for single-

family development; multi-family development; commercial, office, and mixed use development; big-box 

development; and industrial development.  Additionally, community form standards will be drafted which 

will apply to greenfield development in specific areas of the city. 

 

There will not be a comprehensive revision to the sign regulations; however, the sign regulations will be 

reformatted to conform to the rewritten LDC format and to make minor and specific targeted revisions. 

 

Due to the substantial amount of new information in the rewritten LDC, the drafting will be divided into 

two manageable installments consisting of related provisions.  The first installment will include procedures, 

administration, districts and uses.  The second installment will consist of development standards and 

definitions. 

 

Once each set of consolidated written comments are prepared and Clarion and City staff have reached a 

consensus about revisions, Clarion will make the changes.  The draft will then be made public as the “Public 

Review Draft.” 15



MINUTES OF THE CITY COUNCIL AND PLANNING COMMISSION WORKSHOP HELD ON JANUARY 25, 2017, AT 4:00 P.M. AT THE CITY OF 
APOPKA COMMUNITY CENTER. 

 

 

3 

 

 

There will be meetings with the City Council and Planning Commission, as appropriate, to provide a public 

forum for any questions or comments on each of the installments. 

 

Task 4:  A focused test of the draft LDC will be conducted through a side-by-side comparison of four 

examples of recently approved developments with comparable hypothetical development in accordance 

with the draft LDC.  The objective of the comparison is to demonstrate how well the rewritten LDC would 

produce desired forms of development, or outcomes, or otherwise affect development in terms of land uses, 

building form, and overall development quality. 

 

There will be meetings with the City Council and Planning Commission, as appropriate, to provide a public 

forum for any questions or comments on each of the case studies. 

 

Task 5:  Based on the input from the previous tasks and public meetings, revisions will be made to the draft 

LDC and a “Public Hearing Draft” of the LDC and a zoning map will be delivered along with an executive 

summary that explains the structure of the LDC and the changes that have been made. 

 

Public hearings and work sessions will be held with the City Council and Planning Commission to present 

the public hearing draft and answer any questions. 

 

Once those public hearings are held, any revisions will be made a final LDC and zoning map prepared for 

staff review and presentation to the City Council for adoption. 
 
SCHEDULE:  Mr. Sullivan reviewed the schedule of the project and stated that it will take fourteen months 
to complete. 
 
GOALS: 
 
Making the Land Development Code User-Friendly:   Mr. Richardson stated that they would modernize the 
code format and structure.  Provide flexible provisions and made it easier to interpret and administer.  
Streamline the approval/review process.  Ensure that the provisions are consistent. 
 
This will influence the development regulations by streamlining language and reduce redundancy.  
Streamline the review procedures.  Provide graphics and illustrations for ease of use.  Revise definitions 
and cross-references; and add tables. 
 
Implementing the Comprehensive Plan 2030 and Grow Apopka 2025 Vision Plan:  Mr. Richardson stated 
that the amendment would contribute to the revitalization of the downtown and support economic 
development.  It would support the small-town community character and increase walkability.  It would 
protect neighborhoods from incompatible development. 
 
This will influence the development regulations when considering gateway and corridor districts.  It will 
consolidate and modernize permitted and conditional uses.  It will remove barriers to development and add 
neighborhood protection standards.  It will refine the zoning district standards and consolidate and refine 
land uses. 
 
Modernizing the Development Regulations:  Mr. Richardson stated the revised regulations will be based on 
contemporary best practices.  It will provide for high quality urban design and support environmentally-
friendly development. 
 
This will influence the development regulations by refining the design standards.  The possibility of adding 
green building standards and incentives.  Reviewing tree protection, open space, and landscape standards.  16



MINUTES OF THE CITY COUNCIL AND PLANNING COMMISSION WORKSHOP HELD ON JANUARY 25, 2017, AT 4:00 P.M. AT THE CITY OF 
APOPKA COMMUNITY CENTER. 

 

 

4 

 

Reviewing the standards for parking, perimeter buffers and lighting.  It will also include a review of 
nonconformity provisions. 
 
PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT:  Mr. Richardson public involvement will be encouraged by the project 
website.  The website will provide project information and announcements.  Upcoming meetings will be 
posted.  Work products will be downloaded for anyone’s review.  Additionally, a survey has been posted 
that allows the public to provide their input on the types of development or code changes they would like 
to see. 
 
The public will have numerous opportunities to provide input.  The survey that is posted on the project 
website.  Attending the various meetings such as the meetings on the individual modules that will be held 
throughout the drafting process.  Any public meeting where the project will be discussed.  The public may 
also provide feedback any time to the website. 
 
NEXT STEPS:  Mr. Richardson stated the next steps will be have the surveys reviewed by February 14, 
2017.  Review the surveys and background analysis with City staff.  Prepare the Code assessment and 
present it to the community.  Then begin drafting the new code. 
 
In response to questions by Commission Bankson, Mr. Richardson stated the typical length of time for this 
type of review is 18 months; however, 14 months is doable and should not be a problem.  He reiterated that 
the first step is to prepare a code assessment which will then be forwarded to staff and will include the 
rationale for each recommended change.  The second step will be to use that assessment and draft each code 
installment that will contain footnotes for each change that will explain the change and the reason for the 
change.  He said that all of the documents will be made electronically available through the project website. 
 
In response to questions by Mr. Molina, Mr. Richardson stated that this review will only include the zoning 
codes and will address such issues as setbacks from highways.  They will not be reviewing or amending 
any building or environmental codes. 
 
Mayor Kilsheimer stated that the information Mr. Molina was looking for may have to do with what is 

called “Complete Streets.”  These streets are designed and operated to enable safe access for all users, 

including pedestrians, bicyclists, motorists and transit riders of all ages and abilities. Complete Streets make 

it easy to cross the street, walk to shops, and bicycle to work. They allow buses to run on time and make it 

safe for people to walk to and from train stations. 

 

Mr. Hitt stated that adopting a “Complete Streets” policy, communities direct their transportation planners 

and engineers to routinely design and operate the entire right of way to enable safe access for all users, 

regardless of age, ability, or mode of transportation. This means that every transportation project will make 

the street network better and safer for drivers, transit users, pedestrians, and bicyclists—making your town 

a better place to live. 

 

There is no singular design prescription for Complete Streets; each one is unique and responds to its 

community context. A complete street may include: sidewalks, bike lanes (or wide paved shoulders), special 

bus lanes, comfortable and accessible public transportation stops, frequent and safe crossing opportunities, 

median islands, accessible pedestrian signals, curb extensions, narrower travel lanes, roundabouts, and 

more. 

 

A Complete Street in a rural area will look quite different from a Complete Street in a highly urban area, 

but both are designed to balance safety and convenience for everyone using the road. 
 
In response to a question by Mayor Kilsheimer, Mr. Richardson stated that the revised Land Development 
Code will include a mission statement. 17



MINUTES OF THE CITY COUNCIL AND PLANNING COMMISSION WORKSHOP HELD ON JANUARY 25, 2017, AT 4:00 P.M. AT THE CITY OF 
APOPKA COMMUNITY CENTER. 

 

 

5 

 

 
Mayor Kilsheimer encouraged the City Council and the Planning Commission members to get the word out 
about the project and the website because it will have a huge impact on Apopka’s future. 
 
In response to a question by Commission Bankson, Mayor Kilsheimer stated the Public Information Officer, 
Robert Sargent, will be posting notices regarding the upcoming meetings and public hearings. 
 
Mr. Hitt asked that if anyone have any questions or comments to please give him a call or send him an e-
mail.  He stated he will be happy to meet with them to discuss the project and to hear their input. 
 
Mr. Birdsong expressed his support and gratitude for the project.  He said he likes what he sees which is 
that the City preparing for the future growth that will be coming to Apopka. 
 
ADJOURNMENT:   The workshop was adjourned at 5:05 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
 
James Greene, Chairman 
Planning Commission 
 
 
 
 
James K. Hitt  
Community Development Director 

 

18



PLANNING COMMISSION 
AGENDA - FEBRUARY 14, 2017 
Page 19 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 
1. COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT ELEMENT – Amendment to the City of Apopka, 

Five-Year Capital Improvements Plan and incorporation into the Capital Improvement Element. 
  

19



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: February 14, 2017 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Appendix 7-1 – CIE – Five-Year CIP 

 OTHER:      

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT: AMENDMENT TO THE CITY’S FIVE-YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN, AND 
INCORPORATING INTO THE CITY OF APOPKA, COMPREHENSIVE PLAN, CAPITAL 
IMPROVEMENTS ELEMENT. 

 
Request: RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE AMENDMENT TO THE CITY OF APOPKA, FIVE-YEAR 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN AND INCORPORATE INTO THE CITY OF APOPKA 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN, CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT ELEMENT. 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY: 
 
The city’s annual update to the Five-Year Capital Improvement Plan was adopted recently by City Council. This annual update 
of the five-year CIP is intended to schedule capital projects that are necessary to meet accepted levels of service (LOS), to maintain 
and repair failing facilities, and to provide additional infrastructure facilities and roads to meet demands generated by new growth 
and development.      
 
However, the City is pursuing a Florida Department of Environmental Protection – Office of Operation, Lands and Recreation 
grant.  This grant request is for $200,000 to fund the installation of a fitness trail/track at Kit Land Nelson Park to complement 
the future park improvements to Kit Land Nelson Park and Edwards Field.  The grant requires as part of the application process 
that the proposed grant project be included in the City’s Five-Year Capital Improvement Plan.   
 
Further, should the City be awarded grant funding, grant fund disbursement will require a 40 percent match from the City’s 
Recreation general fund in the amount of $80,000    
 
Exhibit ‘A’ of this report includes the updated CIP to be incorporated as Appendix 7-1 of the Capital Improvements Element.  
The proposed CIP changes (additions) are included in the ‘General Fund’ and ‘FDEP Grant Fund’ sections of the Recreation CIP 
(shown in Exhibit ‘A’). 
 
Legislative changes in 2011 to Chapter 163, Florida Statues allow local governments to update their five-year CIP by ordinance, 
and is not considered a comprehensive plan policy amendment. Therefore, incorporation of the updated CIP into the Capital 
Improvements Element does not require transmittal to the Florida Department of Economic Opportunity for state agency review. 
 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
February 14, 2017 – Planning Commission (5:30 pm)  

March 1, 2017 – City Council 1st Reading (1:30 pm) 

March 15, 2017 – City Council 2nd Reading (7:00 pm) 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 
January 20, 2017 – Public Hearing Notice 

March 10, 2017 – Ordinance Adoption Ad  
 

 

 

 

 

DISTRIBUTION: 

Mayor Kilsheimer  Finance Director  Fire Chief 

Commissioners (4)  HR Director  Public Ser. Director 

City Administrator Irby  IT Director  City Clerk 

Community Dev. Director  Police Chief  Recreation Director 

20



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 14, 2017 

ANNUAL UPDATE TO THE FIVE-YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN  

PAGE 2 

 
 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 

 

The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the update of the City of Apopka Five-Year Capital 

Improvements Plan to be incorporated into the Apopka Comprehensive Plan – Capital Improvements Element. 

 

RECOMMENDED MOTION:  Find the proposed amendment of the Apopka Five-Year Capital Improvements Plan 

consistent with the Apopka Comprehensive Plan, recommend approval of the Five-Year Capital Improvements Plan 

amendment and the incorporation into the Capital Improvements Element of the Comprehensive Plan. 

 

Note: This item is considered legislative and establishes general policy.  The staff report and its findings are to 

be incorporated into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

21



APPENDIX 7-1*:  FIVE-YEAR SCHEDULE OF CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS – RECREATION 

(* indicates proposed changes) 

Comprehensive Plan 

Element/Project 

Source of 

Funding 

FY  

16-17 

FY  

17-18 

FY  

18-19 

FY  

19-20 

FY  

20-21 

FY  

21-22 
Totals 

Concession, bathrooms, 

building and sidewalks at 

NWRC 

General 

Fund 

 
$300,000 

 
    $300,000 

Parking Lot-NWRC Little 

League Fields 
 $510,000     $510,000 

Picnic Pavilions  $100,000  $100,000  $100,000 $300,000 

NWRC Ball Field 

Renovations 
$23,900 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000   $173,900 

Fitness Equipment for Kit 

Land Nelson Park (with 

grant) 

      $23,900 

Bleacher Covers Over Quad 

3 
 $60,000     $60,000 

Tennis Court Resurfacing – 

NWRC 
   $50,000   $50,000 

Basketball Resurfacing – 

NWRC 
   $50,000   $50,000 

Lk. Ave. Park – Playground, 

Pavilion, Shade Structure 
  $350,000    $350,000 

Old Little League Fields 

New Park 
   $200,000   $200,000 

NWRC Scoreboards for (1) 

Quad 
 $30,000 $30,000    $60,000 

New ball fields (Baseball, 

soccer, etc.) 
  $2,200,000    $2,200,000 

Alonzo Williams Park 

Improvements (Contingent 

upon CDBG grant award) 

 
 $50,000     $50,000 

Kit Land Nelson Park 

Fitness (grant contingent)* 

 
 $80,000     $80,000 

TOTAL GENERAL 

FUND 

 
$23,900 $1,180,000 $2,630,000 $450,000 $0 $100,000 $3,285,000 

22



Comprehensive Plan 

Element/Project 

Source of 

Funding 

FY  

16-17 

FY  

17-18 

FY  

18-19 

FY  

19-20 

FY  

20-21 

FY  

21-22 
Totals 

Recreation Splash Pad at 

NWRC 

Recreation 

Impact 

Fund 

    $400,000  $400,000 

Skate Park  $300,000     $300,000 

Playground at Apopka 

Athletic Complex (AAC) 
 $75,000     $75,000 

Splash Pad w/ Restrooms 

(Kit Land Nelson Park) 
$750,000      $750,000 

Park Lot - NWRC   $267,000 $865,000  $1,165,000 $2,297,000 

TOTAL RECREATION 

IMPACT FUND 
 $750,000 $375,000 $267,000 $865,000 $400,000 $1,650,000 $4,307,000 

Alonzo Williams 

Community Center Bldg. 
CDBG  $750,000     $750,000 

TOTAL CDBG   $750,000     $750,000 

Alonzo Williams Park1 

Renovations 

FRDAP 

Grant 

$28,000      $28,000 

Alonzo Williams Park New 

Construction2 
$22,000      $22,000 

Kit Land Nelson Park 

Renovations3 
$3,700      $3,700 

Kit Land Nelson Park New 

Construction4 
$42,500      $42,500 

AAC Renovations5  $17,000     $17,000 

AAC New Construction6  $33,000     $33,000 

Old Little League Fields 

New Park Construction 
   $200,000   $200,000 

TOTAL FRDAP GRANT 

FUNDS 

 
$96,200 $50,000 $0 $200,000 $0 $0 $346,200 

                                                           
1 Resurfacing, irrigation, drinking fountain, picnic facilities 
2 Playground, security lighting 
3 Resurfacing, tennis court maintenance, drinking fountain, picnic facilities, miscellaneous maintenance 
4 New playground, bike rack, picnic facilities 
5 Restrooms, playground surface materials, baseball dugout shelters, drinking fountain & picnic facilities 
6 Playground, landscaping, picnic facilities 

23



 

Comprehensive Plan 

Element/Project 

Source 

of 

Funding 

FY  

16-17 

FY  

17-18 

FY  

18-19 

FY  

19-20 

FY  

20-21 

FY  

21-22 
Totals 

Kit Land Nelson Park 

Fitness Track/Trail* 

FDEP 

Grant 
 $200,000     $200,000 

TOTAL FDEP GRANT 

FUNDS 
  $200,000     $200,000 

Gymnasium/Aquatic Center 

(GO Bond) 
Other 

Funds 

 $20,000,000     $20,000,000 

Fitness Equipment for Kit 

Land Nelson Park/Outdoor 

Fitness Grant 

$9,560      $9,560 

TOTAL OTHER FUNDS  $9,560 $20,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $20,009,560 

APPENDIX 7-1 (CONT’D):  FIVE-YEAR SCHEDULE OF CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS – PUBLIC SERVICES 

Comprehensive Plan 

Element/Project 

Source 

of 

Funding 

FY  

16-17 

FY  

17-18 

FY  

18-19 

FY  

19-20 

FY  

20-21 

FY  

21-22 Totals 

Downtown Parking Lot 

CRA 

$200,000      $200,000 

Downtown Park Lot 

Upgrades 
 $500,000    

 
$500,000 

TOTAL CRA FUND        $700,000 

Brick Streets, Repair & 

Restoration 

Street 

Improve- 

ment 

Fund 

 

 $500,000     $500,000 

Equipment (3412 Streets-

6400) 
$60,000 $60,000 $60,000 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $330,000 

New Sidewalk & Curb 

Construction (3412 Streeets-

6304) 

$50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $300,000 

Paving & Resurfacing (3412 

Streets-6304) 
$600,000 $600,000 $600,000 $600,000 $600,000  $3,000,000 

8th Street Complex 

(Renovation/or Relocate) 

Split with 3412/3513/3181) 

$300,000      $300,000 

TOTAL STREET 

IMPROVEMENT FUND 
 $1,010,000 $1,410,000 $710,000 $700,000 $700,000 $100,000 $4,630,000 

 

24



 

Comprehensive Plan 

Element/Project 

Source of 

Funding 

FY  

16-17 

FY  

17-18 

FY  

18-19 

FY  

19-20 

FY  

20-21 

FY 

 21-22 
Totals 

6th Street 

Reconstruction & 

Downtown Related 

Street Improvements, 

Central Ave to US 441 

Traffic 

Impact 

Fee 

$500,000 $500,000 $1,000,000   

 

$2,000,000 

Bradshaw Rd US 441 

Traffic Signal 
$400,000     

 
$400,000 

Peterson Rd (End of 

pavement to Hermit 

Smirth Rd) 2 lanes 

  $750,000   

 

$750,000 

Maine Ave, Martin St 

to Old Dixie Hwy (2 

lanes) 

   $1,000,000  

 

$1,000,000 

Martin St, Maine Ave 

between Park Ave 
   $1,600,000  

 
$1,600,000 

Marden Rd (Keene Rd 

to CR 437A) 2 lanes, 

Urban Section 

Improvement 

$500,000 $500,000    

 

$100,000 

New Sidewalks $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000  $250,000 

Rogers Rd, Lester Rd 

to Ponkan Rd 
  $1,400,000   

 
$1,400,000 

Old Dixie (Hawthorne 

Ave to Schopke Lester 

Rd) turn lane, curb, 

gutter 

$1,000,000     

 

$1,000,000 

Sheeler Ave/Cleveland 

St Intersection 

Improvement (turn 

lanes/traffic light) 

 $500,000    

 

$500,000 

Plymouth Rd/Yothers 

Rd Intersection 

Improvements 

$500,000     

 

$500,000 

25



 

Comprehensive Plan 

Element/Project 

 

Source of 

Funding 

 

FY  

16-17 

 

FY  

17-18 

 

FY  

18-19 

 

FY  

19-20 

 

FY  

20-21 

 

FY 

 21-22 

 

 

Totals 

Piedmont-Wekiwa 

Rd/Greenacres Rd 

(Traffic Light) 

Traffic 

Impact 

Fee 

(Cont’d) 

  $350,000   

 

$350,000 

TOTAL TRAFFIC 

IMPACT FUND 
 $2,950,000 $1,550,000 $3,550,000 $2,650,000 $50,000 $0 $9,850,000 

Drainage Upgrading – 

Citywide (6308) 

Stormwater 

Fund 
$350,000 $350,000 $350,000 $350,000 $350,000 $350,000 $2,100,000 

TOTAL 

STORMWATER 

FUND 

 $350,000 $350,000 $350,000 $350,000 $350,000 $350,000 $2,100,000 

Miscellaneous Water 

Mains (2) 

Water 

Impact 

Fund 

$100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $500,000 

TOTAL WATER 

IMPACT FUND 
 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $600,000 

Binion Rd RWM, 

IFAS to Ocoee Apopka 

Rd, 5,329 LF,  

Reclaim 

Fund 

 

   $511,584   $511,584 

16” Golden Gem 

Reuse Station HSP 
    $6,500,000  $6,500,000 

Keene Rd RWM, 

Marden Rd to Ocoee 

Apopka Rd, 4,413 LF, 

36” 

$794,340      $794,340 

Kelly Park Rd RMW 

II, Jason Dwelley 

Pkwy to Rock Springs 

Rd 16”, 8,801 LF (2) 

  $705,000    $705,000 

Kelly Park Rd RWM, 

Golden Gem Rd to 

Round Lake Rd 24” 

 $371,400     $371,400 

         

26



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Comprehensive Plan 

Element/Project 

 

Source of 

Funding 

 

FY  

16-17 

 

FY  

17-18 

 

FY  

18-19 

 

FY  

19-20 

 

FY  

20-21 

 

FY 

 21-22 

 

Totals 

Miscellaneous RWM 

(5) 

Reclaim 

Fund 

(Cont’d) 

$100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $600,000 

Northwest Reclaim 

Water Pump Station, 2 

@ $3,000 

 $700,000     $700,000 

Northwest Reclaim 

Water Pond 2 & 3 
$250,000      $250,000 

Ocoee Apopka Rd, 

RWM, Harmon Rd to 

Alston Bay Blvd, 2,500 

LF, 30” 

$412,500      $412,500 

Ocoee Apopka Rd 

RWM, Keene Rd to 

Alston Bay Blvd, 4,000 

LF 30” 

$660,000      $600,000 

Plymouth Sorrento Rd 

RWM, Yothers Rd to 

Ponkan Rd, 4,654 LF 

24” (2) 

  $670,176     $670,176 

Ocoee Apopka Rd 

RWM, Keene Rd to 

Binion Rd, 3,500 LF 

30” 

 $308,000      $308,000 

Plymouth Sorrento Rd 

RWM, Ponkan Rd to 

Kelly Park Rd 2,745 

LF, 20” (2) 

  $645,000     $645,000 

TOTAL RELAIM 

FUND 
 $2,524,840 $2,486,576 $805,000 $611,584 $6,600,000 $100,000 $13,128,000 

27



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Comprehensive Plan 

Element/Project 

Source 

of 

Funding 

FY  

16-17 

FY  

17-18 

FY  

18-19 

FY  

19-20 

FY  

20-21 

FY  

21-22 
Totals 

Grossenbacher WTP, 

Replace Well 

Water 

Impact 

Fee 

   $910,000   $910,000 

Haas Rd WM, Mt. 

Plymouth Rd to Round 

Lake Rd, 22,708 LF 

12” (1) 

   $1,634,976   $1,634,976 

Kelly Park Rd WM, 

Golden Gem Rd to 

Round Lake Rd, 4,035 

LF 16” (1) 

 $387,360     $387,360 

Kelly Park Rd WM, 

Plymouth Sorrento Rd 

to Golden Gem, 6,672 

LF 12” (1) 

$400,320      $400,320 

Miscellaneous Water 

Mains (2) 
$100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $600,000 

Mt. Plymouth Water 

Plant (Well #1) 

modifications and 

improvements 

$700,000      $700,000 

Mt. Plymouth Water 

Plant (Well #4) 

modifications and 

improvements 

 $900,000     $900,000 

NW WTP (1 MG 

Storage Tank) (1) 
  $850,000    $850,000 

Plymouth Sorrento Rd 

WM Ponkan Rd to 

Kelly Park Rd, 10,720 

LF 16” (1) 

  $1,030,000    $1,030,000 

28



 
Comprehensive Plan 

Element/Project 

Source 

of 

Funding 

FY  

16-17 

FY  

17-18 

FY  

18-19 

FY  

19-20 

FY  

20-21 

FY  

21-22 
Totals 

Plymouth Sorrento Rd 

WM, Yothers Rd to 

Ponkan Rd, 5,423 LF 

12” (1) 

Water 

Impact 

Fund 

(Cont’d) 

$390,456      $390,456 

Plymouth Regional 

Water Plant, 

modifications and 

improvements Wells 

#1 & 2 

 $900,000     $900,000 

Ponkan Rd, Ponkan 

Pines to Golden Gem 

8,271 LF 12” 

 $595,572     $595,572 

Sheeler Oaks WTP 

65T .75 MG (1) 
 $750,000     $750,000 

Southwest Water 

Plant (1) 
    $4,500,000  $4,500,000 

US 441 WM, Roger 

Williams Rd to 

Sheeler Rd (1) 

  $240,000    $240,000 

TOTAL WATER 

IMPACT FUND 

 
$1,590,776 $2,245,572 $2,220,000 $2,644,976 $4,600,000 $100,000 $13,401,324 

Martin’s Pond 

Improvements 

Other 

Funds 

(TBD) 

      TBD 

TOTAL OTHER 

FUNDS 

 
      TBD 

29



PLANNING COMMISSION 
AGENDA - FEBRUARY 14, 2017 
Page 30 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 
2. COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – LARGE SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – Owned by Project 

Orlando, LLC, from Rural Settlement (0-1 du/5 ac) to Residential Very Low Suburban (0-2 du/ac), for 
property located north of Ponkan Road, east of Golden Gem Road. (Parcel ID #s: 24-20-27-0000-00-005; 
24-20-27-0000-00-076) 

  

30



CITY OF APOPKA 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

   X    PUBLIC HEARING      DATE:  February 14, 2017 
          ANNEXATION      FROM: Community Development 
          PLAT APPROVAL      EXHIBITS: Land Use Report 
          OTHER:          Vicinity Map 
           Future Land Use Map 

Adjacent Zoning Map 
           Adjacent Uses Map 
           Existing Uses Map 

        
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT: COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – LARGE SCALE - FUTURE LAND USE 
AMENDMENT – PROJECT ORLANDO LLC 

     
PARCEL ID NUMBERS: 24-20-27-0000-00-005 & 24-20-27-0000-00-076 
 

Request:   LARGE SCALE - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
    FROM:    RURAL SETTLMENT (0-1 DU/5 AC) 
    TO:      RESIDENTIAL VERY LOW SUBURBAN (0-2 DU/AC) 
________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY 

 

OWNER/APPLICANT: Project Orlando LLC c/o James Welborn 

 

LOCATION: North of Ponkan Road, east of Golden Gem Road 

 

EXISTING USE: Container nursery 

 

CURRENT ZONING: AG (Agriculture) 

 

PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT:  Vacant 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: A zoning application will be processed during or within six months of the e FLUM 

adoption hearing. 
 

TRACT SIZE:   23.43 +/- acres  

 

MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 

DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING: 4 units 

    PROPOSED: 46 single-family units 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 
DISTRIBUTION: 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director   Public Ser. Director 
Commissioners (4)    HR Director    City Clerk 
City Administrator Irby   IT Director    Fire Chief 
Community Dev. Director   Police Chief    Recreation Director 
 

G:\CommDev\PLANNING ZONING\COMPREHENSIVE PLAN\2017\2017-2 Project Orlando LLC\Planning Commission 2-14-17 

 

 

 

 
31



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 14, 2017  

PROJECT ORLANDO LLC – LARGE SCALE - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 

PAGE 2 
 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  The subject parcels were annexed into the City of Apopka on September 7, 
2007. The applicant requests a future land use designation of Residential Very Low Suburban.  The request is 
compatible with surrounding future land use designations and adjacent uses.  As a “Large-Scale” Future Land use 
Amendment (i.e., ten or more acres), this application will be transferred to State agencies for consistency review 
with State policies. 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed use of the property is compatible with the 
character of the surrounding area and is consistent with the Residential Very Low Suburban land use designation.  
City planning staff supports the FLUM amendment given the consistency with the Comprehensive Plan policies 
listed below and the intent of the proposed development as a single-family residential community see (Land Use 
Analysis below).   Site development cannot exceed the intensity allowed by the Future Land Use policies.  
 
Future Land Use Element 
 

1. Policy 3.1.c The primary use shall be residential dwelling units up to 2 dwelling units per acre, elementary 
schools; middle schools; supporting infrastructure of less than two acres, neighborhood parks. 
 
The applicant’s wish to develop the properties for a single-family residential subdivision, which is 
consistent with Policy 3.1.c. 

 
2. Policy 3.14 The City shall consider the following when evaluating land use amendments, especially 

changes from very low density categories to higher density categories and voluntary annexation requests: 
 

 Whether the amendment demonstrates a functional relationship of the proposed amendment to 
other more densely or intensely designated or development lands; 
 

 The availability of public facilities and water supplier to service a more dense or intense land use; 
and 

 
 Multi-modal transportation linkages between proposed residential use and neighborhood. 

 
The request for single-family residential development at two (2) dwelling units per acre provides for a 
transition between the Zellwood Station mobile home and golf development to the south and the rural and 
single-family homes at lower densities adjacent to the subject properties.  Any future residential 
development will require connection to city water/sewer. 
 

3. Policy 3.2 Development and redevelopment shall be integrated with the adjacent land uses through: (1) 
the creation of like uses; or (2) creation of complementary uses; or (3) mitigation of adverse impacts. 
 
The proposed use for the subject properties as a low-density single-family residential development is 
consistent with the current and future proposed development of the surrounding area.  Residential Very 
Low Suburban future land use designation is within proximity to the subject properties, and is compatible 
with single-family residential homes immediately adjacent to the subject properties.  Any future single-
family community will require as part of residential zoning requirements to provide landscape buffers and 
walls as part of the zoning site requirements to mitigate any adverse impacts. 

 
4. Policy 3.5 Residential development north of Ponkan Road and west of Rock Springs Road (Park Avenue) 

will be restricted to no more than two dwelling units per acre, unless otherwise authorized through the 
adopted Wekiva Parkway Interchange Plan. 

 
 The subject properties are located north of Ponkan Road and west of Rock Springs Road. These sites are 

not within the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan area; the request for a Residential Low future 
land use designation, which allows for a maximum density of two dwelling units per acre is consistent 
with this policy. 

32



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 14, 2017  

PROJECT ORLANDO LLC – LARGE SCALE - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 

PAGE 3 
 
 
SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:    An executed capacity enhancement agreement with Orange County Public 
Schools will be required prior to adoption of the future land use amendment. 
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any 
public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on January 13, 2017. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
February 14, 2017 – Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 
March 1, 2017 – City Council (1:30 pm) - 1st Reading & Transmittal 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
January 20, 2017 – Public Notice and Notification 
TBD – Ordinance Heading & Public Notice ¼ Page Ad w/Map 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

 

The Development Review Committee recommends approval to transmit a change in Future Land Use from Rural 

Settlement (0-1 du/5 ac) to Residential Very Low Suburban (0-2 du/ac) for the property owned by Project Orlando, 

LLC, subject to the information and findings in the staff report. 

 

Recommended Motion:  Find the Residential Future Land Use Designation consistent with the Comprehensive 

Plan and recommend a change in Future Land Use Designation from Rural Settlement (0-1 du/5 ac) to Residential 

Very Low Suburban (0-2 du/ac) for the properties owned by Project Orlando, LLC, subject to the information and 

findings in the staff report. 

 

Note: This item is considered legislative.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into and 

made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

33



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 14, 2017  

PROJECT ORLANDO LLC – LARGE SCALE - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 

PAGE 4 
 

LAND USE REPORT 

 

I. RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City & 

County) 

“City” Conservation & “County” Rural 

(0-1 du/ac) 

“City” A-1 (ZIP) 

& “County” A-1 

Vacant 

East (County) Rural (0-1 du/10 ac) A-1 Mobile home 

South (County) Rural (0-1 du/10 ac) P-D  R-0-W & Vacant (Zellwood Country Club) 

West (County) Rural (0-1 du/10 ac) A-1 Single-family residences 

 
The property has access from the south to W Ponkan Road. 
 
II. LAND USE ANALYSIS 
 
The subject properties are located within an area with land uses that permit low density residential development, 
including “City” Residential Very Low Suburban land uses less than a quarter-mile east of the subject sites. 
 
City owned conservation properties and other rural, less intense uses to the north.  The proposed use as single-
family residential is consistent as single-family residences to the west and east, as well as and Zellwood Station, 
a higher-density golf course and mobile home community to the south of W Ponkan Road. 
 
Therefore, the proposed Residential Very Low Suburban future land use designation is consistent with the general 
future land use character and long-range planning goals of the surrounding area.  
 
 Wekiva River Protection Area: No 
 Area of Critical State Concern: No 
 DRI / FQD: No 
 
 JPA: The City of Apopka and Orange County entered into a Joint Planning Area (JPA) agreement on 
October 26, 2004.  The subject property is located within the “Northern Tier” of the JPA.   Orange County 
government has been notified of the proposed FLUM amendment and has not objected.     
 
 Transportation:  Road access to the site from W. Ponkan Road to the south. 
 
 Wekiva Parkway and Protection Act: The proposed amendment has been evaluated against the adopted 
Wekiva Study Area Comprehensive Plan policies.  The proposed amendment is consistent with the adopted 
mandates and requirements.  The proposed Future Land Use Map (FLUM) amendment has been reviewed against 
the best available data, with regard to aquifer and groundwater resources.  The City of Apopka's adopted 
Comprehensive Plan addresses aquifer recharge and storm water run-off through the following policies: 

 
 Future Land Use Element, Policies 4.16, 14.4, 15.1, 16.2 and 18.2 
 Infrastructure Element, Policies 1.5.5, 4.2.7, 4.4, 4.4.1, 4.4.2 and 4.4.3 
 Conservation Element, Policy 3.18 

 
Karst Features: The Karst Topography Features Map from the Florida Department of Environmental 

Protection shows that there are  karst features on this property.   
 
 Analysis of the character of the Property:  The current use of the properties are vacant.  The dominant soil, 
Candler Fine Sand, has a 0-5 percent slope. 
 
 

34



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 14, 2017  

PROJECT ORLANDO LLC – LARGE SCALE - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 

PAGE 5 
 
 Analysis of the relationship of the amendment to the population projections: These properties were 
annexed into the City on September 7, 2005. Based on the adoption of the JPA, the size of the property, and the 
proposed land use change, the amendment will increase the population if developed. 
  
CALCULATIONS: 
ADOPTED:  4 x 2.659 p/h = 11 persons 
PROPOSED: 46 x 2.659 p/h = 122 persons  
 
 Housing Needs: This amendment is to change the future land use to a future land use designation that 
permits residential uses, and will increase the number of available housing units in the City of Apopka. 
 
 Habitat for species listed as endangered, threatened or of special concern: A habitat study is required for 
developments greater than ten (10) acres in size.  At the time the Master Site Plan or Preliminary Development 
Plan is submitted to the City, the development applicant must conduct a species survey and submit a habitat 
management plan if any threatened or endangered species are identified within the project site. 
 
 Transportation: The City of Apopka is a Transportation Concurrency Exception Area.  Refer to Chapter 
3 of the City of Apopka 2010 Comprehensive Plan. 
 
 Sanitary Sewer Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard:  None ;  81 GPCD; 81 GPD 
 
 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: City of Apopka 
 

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:    784   GPD 
 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:   9,016   GPD 
 

4. Capacity available: Yes 
 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation:  81 GPD/Capita 
 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  81 GPD/Capita 
 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result if proposed amendment: None 
 

 Potable Water Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard:  None ;  177 GPCD;  
 177 GPD 

 
 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: 
 City of Apopka 
 

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:     840   GPD 
 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:   9,660   GPD 
 

4. Capacity available: Yes 
 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation:  177 GPCD 
 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  177 GPCD 
 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: None 
 

8. Parcel located within the reclaimed water service area: Yes   35



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 14, 2017  

PROJECT ORLANDO LLC – LARGE SCALE - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 

PAGE 6 
 
 

 Solid Waste 
 

1. Facilities serving the site:  City of Apopka 
 

2. If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: 
City of Apopka 
 

3. Projected LOS under existing designation:  44  lbs./person/day 
 

4. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  488  lbs./person/day 
 

5. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: None 
 
 This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of 

development approval. 
 

 Infrastructure Information 
 
 Water treatment plant permit number: CUP No. 3217 
 
 Permitting agency: St. John's River Water Management District 
 
 Permitted capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  21,981 mil. GPD 
 
 Total design capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  33,696 mil. GPD 
 
 Availability of distribution lines to serve the property: Yes 
 
 Availability of reuse distribution lines available to serve the property: Yes 
 

 Drainage Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site:    None            
 

2. Projected LOS under existing designation: 100 year - 24 hour design storm event.  
 

3. Projected LOS under proposed designation: 100 year - 24 hour design storm event.  
 

4. Improvement/expansion: On-site retention/detention pond  
 
 Recreation 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; LOS standard: City of Apopka Parks System; 3 AC/1000 capita 
 

2. Projected facility under existing designation:  0.033  AC 
 

3. Projected facility under proposed designation:  0.366    AC 
 

4. Improvement/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: 
None.     
 

This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of development 
approval. 
  36



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 14, 2017  

PROJECT ORLANDO LLC – LARGE SCALE - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 

PAGE 7 
 

Project Orlando LLC 
Property Owner 
23.43 +/- Acres 

Proposed Large Scale Future Land Use Amendment: 
From: Rural Settlement (0-1 du/5 ac) 

To: Residential Very Low Suburban (0-2 du/ac)  
Proposed Change of Zoning: 

From: AG (Agriculture) 
To: TBD at time of FLUM adoption 

Parcel ID #s:  24-20-27-0000-00-005 & 24-20-27-0000-00-076 
 

VICINITY MAP  

 
 

 

 

 

 

SUBJECT  

PROPERTIES 

37



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 14, 2017  

PROJECT ORLANDO LLC – LARGE SCALE - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 

PAGE 8 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

FUTURE LAND USE MAP 
 

  

38



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 14, 2017  

PROJECT ORLANDO LLC – LARGE SCALE - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 

PAGE 9 
 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 
 

 

  

39



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 14, 2017  

PROJECT ORLANDO LLC – LARGE SCALE - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 

PAGE 10 
 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
40



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 14, 2017  

PROJECT ORLANDO LLC – LARGE SCALE - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 

PAGE 11 
 

 

 

 

 

EXISTING USES 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 41



PLANNING COMMISSION 
AGENDA - FEBRUARY 14, 2017 
Page 42 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 
3. COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – Owned by Apopka 

Holdings, LLC, from “County” Low Density Residential (0-4 du/ac) to “City” Office (Max. 0.3 FAR), for 
property located at 1109 South Park Avenue and 157 Rand Court. (Parcel ID #s: 15-21-28-7540-000-771; 
15-21-28-7540-00-772) 

  

42



CITY OF APOPKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

   X    PUBLIC HEARING      DATE:  February 14, 2017 
          ANNEXATION      FROM: Community Development 
          PLAT APPROVAL      EXHIBITS: Land Use Report 
          OTHER:          Vicinity Map 
           Adjacent Zoning Map 
           Adjacent Uses Map 
           Existing Uses 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT: COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE 
AMENDMENT - APOPKA HOLDINGS LLC  

     
PARCEL ID NUMBER: 09-21-28-7540-00-771 & 09-21-28-7540-00-772 
 
Request: COMPREHENSIVE PLAN - SMALL SCALE - FUTURE LAND USE 

AMENDMENT 
    FROM: “COUNTY” LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL (0-4 DU/AC) 
    TO:  “CITY” OFFICE (MAX. FAR 0.30) 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY 
 
OWNER/APPLICANT:  Apopka Holdings LLC 
 
LOCATION:  1109 S Park Avenue & 157 Rand Court 
 
EXISTING USE:   Single-family residence  
 
CURRENT ZONING:  “County” R-3 (ZIP) 
 
DEVELOPMENT POTENTAIL:  maximum 10,715 sq. ft. office use (.30 floor area ratio) 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: “City” PUD/PO/I (Professional Office/Institutional) (Note: this Future 

Land Use Map amendment request is being processed along with a request 
to change the Zoning Map designation from “County”R-3 (ZIP) to “City” 
PUD/PO/I.) 

 
TRACT SIZE:    0.82 +/- acres 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT UNDER  EXISTING: Single-family residence 
ZONING DISTRICT:                         PROPOSED: Up to 10,715 sq. ft. office use. 
. 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer     Finance Director   Public Ser. Director 
Commissioners (4)     HR Director    City Clerk 
City Administrator Irby    IT Director    Fire Chief 
Community Dev. Director    Police Chief    Recreation Director 
 
 
G:\CommDev\PLANNING ZONING\SMALL SCALE FLU AMENDS\2017\Apopka Holdings LLC\Planning Commission 2-14-17 
 
 
 43



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 14, 2017 

APOPKA HOLDINGS LLC - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 2 
 
 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  Applicant intends to use the subject property for a parking lot to meet minimum 
parking requirements for the Central Florida Recovery Center, located on the opposite side of Park 
Avenue\Clarcona Road.  Presently, the subject property has not yet been assigned a “City” Future Land Use 
Designation or a “City” zoning category.  Applicant is requesting the City to assign a future land use designation 
of Office (max FAR of 0.3) to the property.  
 
The subject properties were annexed into the City of Apopka on February 1, 2017, through the adoption of 
Ordinance No. 2546.  The proposed Small-Scale Future Land Use Amendment is being requested by the 
owner/applicant.  Pursuant to Florida law, properties containing less than ten acres are eligible to be processed as 
a small-scale amendment.  Such process does not require review by State planning agencies. 
 
A request to assign a Future Land Use Designation of Office is compatible with the designations assigned to 
abutting properties.  The FLUM application covers approximately 0.82 acres.  
 
In conjunction with state requirements, staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that adequate 
public facilities exist to support this land use change (see attached Land Use Report).  Based on the findings of 
the Land Use report, the proposed FLUM amendment is compatible with the surrounding and nearby land uses 
and the character of the general area. 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The existing and proposed use of the property is consistent with 
the Office (max 0.3 FAR) Future Land Use designation and the City’s proposed PUD/PO/I Zoning. 
 
SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  Because this request represents a change to a non-residential future land use 
designation and zoning classification, school capacity determination by Orange County Public Schools is not 
required. 
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any 
public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on January 13, 2017. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
February 14, 2017 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 
March 1, 2017 - City Council (1:30 pm) - 1st Reading 
March 15, 2017 – City Council (7:00 pm) - 2nd Reading 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
February 3, 2017 – Public Notice and Notification 
March 10, 2017 – ¼ Page w/Map Ordinance Heading Ad  
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive Plan 
and compatible with the character of the surrounding area, and recommends approval of the change in Future 
Land Use from “County” Low Density Residential (0-4 du/ac) to “City” Office (max 0.3 FAR) for the properties 
owned by Apopka Holdings LLC and located at 1109 S Park Avenue & 157 Rand Court. 
 
Recommended Motion:  Find the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and compatible 
with the character of the surrounding area, and recommend to amend the Future Land Use Map designation from 
“County” Low Density Residential to “City” Office. 
 
Note: This item is considered Legislative.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into and 
made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

44



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 14, 2017 

APOPKA HOLDINGS LLC - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 3 
 

LAND USE REPORT 

 

I. RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Industrial (max 0.6 FAR) I-1 Vacant industrial 

East 

(County) 

 Low Density Residential (0-

4 du/ac) 

R-3 Single-family residences 

South 

(County) 

Low Density Residential (0-

4 du/ac) 

R-3 Single family residence 

West (City) Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) 

& Office (max 0.3 FAR) 

R-3 & 

PUD/PO/I/Residential 

Church (St. Paul AME Church) and Central 

Florida Recovery Center Office/Inpatient 

Residential 

 

II. LAND USE ANALYSIS 
 

The applicant intends to redevelop the property for use for off-site parking to serve the approved mental health 

and substance abuse center located on the west side of Park Avenue\Clarcona Road.  If all the land is not needed 

to accommodate parking needs for the Central Florida Recovery Center, a small office building may be 

constructed on the subject property. The proposed future land use of Office and use for the property is compatible 

with the general character of the surrounding neighborhood.   Predominant existing land uses and assigned zoning 

in the abutting and surrounding area industrial are single family residential and religious facilities, with Office 

future land use to the west of subject sites (under the same ownership as the subject sites), and Industrial land use 

to the north.   

 

North:  Abutting the subject property to the north are vacant industrial properties with industrial and commercial 

buildings to the north of this vacant property.  

 

West:   The subject properties front S. Park Ave. to the west, with St. Paul AME Church and the approved Central 

Florida Recovery Center properties to the west. These uses have Residential Low and Office future land use 

designations, respectively. 

 

South:  Single family homes abut the subject property directly to the south.  While the areas to the south are 

predominantly single family residential, commercial-zoned nodes do occur approximately 600 feet away. 

 

East:   Properties to the east are located within unincorporated Orange County and are used currently for single-

family residences and have a Low Density Residential land use designation. 

 

The proposed future land use designation of “City” Office serves as a transitional land use between the residential 

uses to the east and south, as well as the institutional uses to the west and industrial land uses to the north. 

 

Therefore, staff supports the proposed future land use changes. 
 

 Other Information:  
 Wekiva River Protection Area: No 
 Area of Critical State Concern: No 
 DRI / FQD: No 
 45



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 14, 2017 

APOPKA HOLDINGS LLC - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 4 
 
 JPA: The City of Apopka and Orange County entered into a Joint Planning Area (JPA) agreement on 
October 26, 2004.  The subject property is located within “Core Area” of the JPA.   
 
 
  Wekiva Parkway and Protection Act:   The proposed amendment has been evaluated against the 
adopted Wekiva Study Area Comprehensive Plan policies.  While located within the Wekiva River Basin Study 
Area, the subject property is not located within the Protection Area. The proposed amendment is consistent with 
the adopted mandates and requirements.  The proposed Future Land Use Map (FLUM) amendment has been 
reviewed against the best available data, with regard to aquifer and groundwater resources.  The City of Apopka's 
adopted Comprehensive Plan addresses aquifer recharge and stormwater run-off through the following policies: 
 

 Future Land Use Element, Policies 4.16, 14.4, 15.1, 16.2 and 18.2 
 Infrastructure Element, Policies 1.5.5, 4.2.7, 4.4, 4.4.1, 4.4.2 and 4.4.3 
 Conservation Element, Policy 3.18 

 
Karst Features: The Karst Topography Features Map from the Florida Department of Environmental 

Protection shows that there are no karst features on this property. 
 
 Analysis of the character of the Property:  The properties front S Park Avenue. The vegetative communities 
present are urban; the soils present are Candler fine sand; and no wetlands occur on the site, and the terrain has a 
0-5 percent slope. 
 
 The proposed amendment is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, including Policy 3.1.j Office Future 
Land Use designation. 
 
 Analysis of the relationship of the amendment to the population projections: The proposed future land use 
designation for the Property is Office (max FAR 0.3).  Based on the housing element of the City's Comprehensive 
Plan, this amendment will not increase the City’s future population.   
 
CALCULATIONS: 
ADOPTED (County designation): 3 Unit(s) x 2.659 p/h = 8 persons 
PROPOSED (City designation): N/A, no residential. 
 
 Housing Needs: This amendment will not negatively impact the housing needs as projected in the 
Comprehensive Plan.   
 
 Habitat for species listed as endangered, threatened or of special concern: Per policy 4.1 of the 
Conservation Element, a habitat study is required for developments greater than ten (10) acres in size.  This site 
is less than ten acres.  A habitat study will not be required at the time of a development plan application.   
 
 Transportation: The City of Apopka is a Transportation Concurrency Exception Area.  Refer to Chapter 
3 of the City of Apopka 2010 Comprehensive Plan. 
 
 Potable Water, Reclaimed Water & Sanitary Sewer Analysis: The subject property is located within the 
Orange County Utilities service area for potable water, reclaimed water and sanitary service.  The property owner 
will need to provide a letter from Orange County Utilities demonstrating available capacity prior to submittal of 
any development plan.  
 

 Sanitary Sewer Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard:  None ;   81 GPD/Capita; 
 81 GPD / Capita 

 
 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: City of Apopka                  46



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 14, 2017 

APOPKA HOLDINGS LLC - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 5 
 
 

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:  588 GPD 
 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:  1,607  GPD 
 

4. Capacity available: Yes 
 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation:  81 GPD/Capita 
 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  81 GPD/Capita 
 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result if proposed amendment: None 
 
 Potable Water Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard:  City of Apopka ; 177 GPD/Capita; 
 177 GPD/Capita 

 
 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider:  City of Apopka   
 

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:  1,362  GPD 
 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:  2,143  GPD 
 

4. Capacity available: Yes 
 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation:  177 GPD/Capita 
 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  177 GPD/Capita 
 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: None 
 

8. Parcel located within the reclaimed water service area: Yes           
 

 Solid Waste 
 

1. Facilities serving the site: City of Apopka  
 

2. If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: 
City of Apopka 
 

3. Projected LOS under existing designation:  32  lbs./person/day 
 

4. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  21 lbs./day/1000 sf 
 

5. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: None 
 
 This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of 
development approval. 
 

Infrastructure Information 
 
 Water treatment plant permit number: CUP No. 3217 
 
 Permitting agency: St. John's River Water Management District 
 
 Permitted capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  21.981 GPD 47



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 14, 2017 

APOPKA HOLDINGS LLC - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 6 
 
 
 Total design capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  33.696 GPD 
 
 Availability of distribution lines to serve the property: Yes 
 
 Availability of reuse distribution lines available to serve the property:  No 
 

 Drainage Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site: None 
 

2. Projected LOS under existing designation:  100 year - 25 hour design storm  
 

3. Projected LOS under proposed designation: 100 year - 25 hour design storm  
 

4. Improvement/expansion: On-site retention/detention pond  
 
 Recreation 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; LOS standard: City of Apopka Parks System; 3 AC/1000 capita 
 

2. Projected facility under existing designation:  0.024  AC 
 

3. Projected facility under proposed designation:  N/A AC 
 

4. Improvement/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: 
None 

 
This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of development 
approval. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 48



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 14, 2017 

APOPKA HOLDINGS LLC - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 7 
 

Apopka Holdings, LLC 
Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment: 
From: “County” Low Density Residential (0-4 du/ac) 

To: “City” Office (max 0.3 FAR)  
Proposed Change of Zoning: 

From: “County” R-3 (Residential) 
To: “City” PUD/PO/I (Planned Unit Development/Professional Office/Institutional) 

Parcel ID #s:  15-21-28-7540-00-771; -772 
 

VICINITY MAP 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Subject 

Properties 

49



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 14, 2017 

APOPKA HOLDINGS LLC - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 8 
 

 

 

 

FUTURE LAND USE MAP 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
50



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 14, 2017 

APOPKA HOLDINGS LLC - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 9 
 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 51



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 14, 2017 

APOPKA HOLDINGS LLC - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 10 
 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

52



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 14, 2017 

APOPKA HOLDINGS LLC - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 11 
 

 

 

 

EXISTING USES 
 

 

 

 

53



PLANNING COMMISSION 
AGENDA - FEBRUARY 14, 2017 
Page 54 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 
4. CHANGE OF ZONING – Owned by Apopka Holdings, LLC, from “County” R-3 (Residential) to “City” 

Planned Unit Development (PUD/PO-I), for property located at 1109 South Park Avenue and 157 Rand 
Court. (Parcel ID #s: 15-21-28-7540-000-771; 15-21-28-7540-00-772) 

  

54



 
CITY OF APOPKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

   X    PUBLIC HEARING      DATE:  February 14, 2017 
          ANNEXATION      FROM: Community Development 
          PLAT APPROVAL      EXHIBITS: Land Use Report 
          OTHER:          Vicinity Map 
           Adjacent Zoning Map 
           Adjacent Uses Map 
           Existing Use Map 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT: CHANGE OF ZONING – APOPKA HOLDINGS, LLC 
     
PARCEL ID NUMBER: 09-21-28-7540-00-771 & 09-21-28-7540-00-772 
 

Request:   CHANGE OF ZONING 
    FROM: “COUNTY” R-3 (RESIDENTIAL) 

TO: PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD - PO/I - 
RESIDENTIAL) (MAX. 0.30 FAR)  

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY 
 
OWNER/APPLICANT:  Apopka Holdings, LLC 
 
LOCATION:  1109 S Park Avenue & 157 Rand Court 
 
EXISTING USE: Single-family residential homes 
 
FLUM DESIGNATION:  “County” Low Density Residential (0 – 4 du/ac) 
 
CURRENT ZONING:  “County” R-3 (ZIP)  
  
DEVELOPMENT POTENTIAL:  maximum 10,715 sq. ft. office use (.30 floor area ratio) 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: Planned Unit Development (PUD/PO/I) (Note: this Change of Zoning 

request is being processed along with the request to change the Future Land 
Use Map designation to “City” Office) 

 
TRACT SIZE:    0.82 +/- acres 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT UNDER  EXISTING: Single-family residences 
ZONING DISTRICT:                         PROPOSED: maximum of 10,715 sq. ft. office use 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer     Finance Director   Public Ser. Director 
Commissioners (4)     HR Director    City Clerk 
City Administrator Irby    IT Director    Fire Chief 
Community Dev. Director    Police Chief  
 
G:\CommDev\PLANNING ZONING\REZONING\2017\Apopka Holdings LLC\Planning Commission 2-14-17 
 
 
 
 
 
 55



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 14, 2017 

APOPKA HOLDINGS, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 2 
 
 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:   The subject properties were annexed into the City of Apopka on February 1, 
2017 via Ordinance 2546.  The applicant requests the change of zoning to PUD/PO/I to accommodate off-site 
parking to serve the existing Central Florida Recovery Center properties owned by the applicant.  If the subject 
site accommodates the parking requirements for Central Florida Recovery Center, applicant may desire to 
construct a 2,000 sq. ft. office building on the site as well, subject to demonstrating that sufficient parking is 
available for the subject property and for the Central Florida Recovery Center. 
  
In conjunction with state requirements, staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that adequate 
public facilities exist to support this zoning change (see attached Zoning Report). 
 
RECOMMEDED PUD ZONING AND DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS:  That the zoning classification of 
the following described property be designated as Planned Unit Development (PUD), as defined in the Apopka 
Land Development Code, and with the following Master Plan provisions subject to the following zoning 
provisions: 
 
A. The uses permitted within the PUD district shall be:  the subject property shall be used for parking to 

accommodate the parking requirements for the Central Florida Recovery Center located on Parcel Numbers 
09-21-28-0917-10-211 and 09-21-28-0917-10-213. If another site is used and developed to accommodate this 
parking need for Central Florida Recovery, then the following all uses permitted within the PO/I (Professional 
Office/Institutional PO\I (zoning category) are allowed except for following PO/I uses shall be prohibited:  

   
1. Hospitals, museums, libraries or cultural institutions;  

 

2. Retail establishments, including those for the sale of pharmaceutical, medical and dental supplies or 

other hospital-related items; 

 

3. Boarding or rooming house(s); 

 

4. All other uses listed as prohibited within the Professional Office/Institutional zoning district; 

 

5. Pharmacy; 

 

6. All uses permitted through a special exception within the Professional Office/Institutional zoning 

district. 
 
B. Unless otherwise approved by City Council through an alternative development guideline that is adequate to 

protect the public health safety and welfare, the following development standards shall apply to the 
development of the Property and for the Final Development/master site plan: 

 
Building Design Standards: 

 
1. New development shall have architectural features and materials that are residential in character. 

 

a. Any office structure shall have a roof with a 4-to-1 pitch and shall be shingled or tiled. 

 

b. Maximum number of stories allowed is two (2).  Maximum building height of thirty-five (35) feet. 

 

c. Windows shall include fenestration detail and/or shutters.  

 

56



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 14, 2017 

APOPKA HOLDINGS, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 3 
 

d. All ground and rooftop utilities shall be screened from view from any public street or adjacent 

property. 

 

e. A main building entrance shall face a public street.  
 

Building Design Guidelines 
 
1. Building exterior design uses residential-scale fenestration that may include: 
 

i. Windows with multi-pane glazing 
 
ii. Dormers or similar architectural features 
 
iii. Roof overhang, cornice, eaves, soffits 

 
2. Building façades that are modulated into house-sized segments or broken into separate buildings are 

encouraged. 
 
3. A portico or porch is encouraged to define a main building entrance. 
 
4. The total area of the first floor of a building shall not exceed 12,000 sq. ft. and the total gross floor 

area of a building shall not exceed 18,000 sq. ft.  The minimum and maximum floor area does not 
apply to churches. 
 

Site Design Standards: 
 
1. The front façade and primary entrance of the building shall be oriented toward the front of the property. 
 
2. Minimum front setback of 15 ft. and a maximum of 25 ft. 
 
3. Parking lot shall be screened from the public street by a hedge and wrought-iron style fence or a 3-

foot decorative stone wall.  
 
4. Parking is located at the rear or side of any building.  

 
C. If a Final Development Plan associated with the PUD district has not been approved by the City within three 

years after approval of these Master Plan provisions, the approval of the Master Plan provisions will expire. 
At such time, the City Council may: 

 
1. Permit a single six-month extension for submittal of the required Final Development Plan; 
 
2. Allow the PUD zoning designation to remain on the property pending resubmittal of new Master Plan 

provisions and any conditions of approval; or 
 
3. Rezone the property to a more appropriate zoning classification. 

 
4. The site shall provide a six-foot brick/masonry wall along the southern and eastern portions of the subject 

properties adjacent to residential uses. 
 

5. The subject properties shall meet all other buffer yard and landscaping requirements, as defined in the 
Apopka Land Development Code. 
 
 57



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 14, 2017 

APOPKA HOLDINGS, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 4 
 

6. The applicant must demonstrate through the Final Development Plan that sufficient parking exists to 
support off-site parking requirements for existing Central Florida Recovery Center properties west of Park 
Avenue, as well as any future professional office development on-site. 
 

7. Connection to City central water and sewer service is required prior to issuance of a certificate of 
occupancy for any future office development.   
 

8. The applicant must receive approval for the location of a crosswalk from the subject properties to the 
existing Central Florida Recovery Center properties; the approved crosswalk location shall be identified 
on the Final Development Plan.   
 

9. Unless otherwise provided herein, the design of the site through a Master Plan\Final Development Plan 
shall occur consistent with development standards for the PO/I zoning district.  Modifications to the Final 
Development Plan may be approved by the Development Review Committee if determined to be an 
insubstantial change by the Community Development Director. 

 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The existing and proposed use of the property is consistent with 
the Office Future Land Use designation and the City’s proposed Planned Unit Development (PUD/PO/I) Zoning 
classifications.  Site development cannot exceed the intensity allowed by the Future Land Use policies. 
 
SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT: Because this Change of Zoning represents a change to a non-residential 
underlying zoning classification, a capacity enhancement agreement with Orange County Public Schools is not 
required. 
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any 
public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on January 13, 2017. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
February 14, 2017 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 
March 1, 2017 - City Council (1:30 pm) - 1st Reading 
March 15, 2017 – City Council (7:00 pm) - 2nd Reading 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
February 3, 2017 – Public Notice and Notification 
March 10, 2017 – ¼ Page w/Map Ordinance Heading Ad  
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive Plan 
and recommends approval of the change in zoning from R-3 (ZIP) to Planned Unit Development (PUD/PO/I) 
subject to the PUD zoning and developments standards for the property owned by Apopka Holdings, LLC. 
 
Recommended Motion: Find the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and recommend 
approval of the change in zoning from R-3 (ZIP) to Planned Unit Development (PUD/PO/I) subject to the PUD 
zoning and developments standards for the property owned by Apopka Holdings, LLC. 
 
Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 
and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

58



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 14, 2017 

APOPKA HOLDINGS, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 5 
 

ZONING REPORT 

 

I. RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Industrial (max 0.6 FAR) I-1 Vacant industrial 

East (County)  Low Density Residential (0-4 du/ac) R-3 Single-family residences 

South (County) Low Density Residential (0-4 du/ac) R-3 Single family residence 

West (City) Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) & Office 

(max 0.3 FAR) 

R-3 & 

PUD/PO

/I/Resid

ential 

Church (St. Paul AME Church) and Central 

Florida Recovery Center Office/Inpatient 

Residential 

 

LAND USE COMPATIBILITY:  

 

The proposed zoning and use is compatible with adjacent zoning districts and the general character of the 

surrounding area. Predominant land uses in the abutting and surrounding area are single family residential and 

religious facilities. Parcels abutting to the west across S Park Avenue are for a church – the St. Paul African 

Methodist Episcopal Church, as well as the existing Central Florida Recovery Center owned by the applicant, 

institutional and office uses, respectively.  In addition, the area contains other non-residential land uses, including 

industrial north and commercial to the south of the subject sites. 

 

The underlying PO/I zoning serves as a transitional zoning between the residential uses to the east and south, to 

the institutional and industrial zoning uses and zoning to the west and north of the subject properties. 

 

The Land Use Compatibility supporting information from the Future Land Use amendment is incorporated into 

the findings of the Zoning Report. 
 
TRAFFIC COMPATIBILITY: The property has access to a Minor Arterial roadway (S. Park Avenue/ 

Clarcona Road). A medical office/clinic is a permissible use within the PO/I 
zoning category.  Future land use designations and zoning categories 
assigned to properties to the north, south, east, and west is predominantly 
residential, industrial and commercial.   

 
COMPREHENSIVE 
PLAN COMPLIANCE:  The proposed PUD/PO/I/Residential zoning is compatible with policies set 

forth in the Comprehensive Plan.  The underlying PO/I zoning standards 
within the proposed PUD are as follows: 

 
PO/I DISTRICT 
REQUIREMENTS:    FAR:     0.30 (max.) 
     Open Space:    30 percent 
     Minimum Site Area:   10,000 sq. ft. 
     Minimum Lot Width:   85 ft. 
     Setbacks: Front:   25 ft. 
       Side:   10 ft. 
       Corner: 25 ft. 
       Rear:   10 ft. 
     Adjacent to Residential:  25 ft. 59



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 14, 2017 

APOPKA HOLDINGS, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 6 
 
 
 
BUFFERYARD 
REQUIREMENTS:  Areas adjacent to all road rights-of-way shall provide a minimum ten (10) 

foot landscaped bufferyard. Areas adjacent residential use shall provide a 
minimum six (6) foot masonry wall within a ten (10) foot landscaped 
bufferyard. 

 
ALLOWABLE 
USES:  Professional offices, medical or dental clinics and offices, establishments 

for the retail sale of pharmaceutical, medical and dental supplies, hospitals, 
museums, libraries, churches and educational facilities. 

  

60



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 14, 2017 

APOPKA HOLDINGS, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 7 
 

 
Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment: 
From: “County” Low Density Residential (0-4 du/ac) 

To: “City” Office (max 0.3 FAR)  
Proposed Change of Zoning: 

From: “County” R-3 (Residential) 
To: “City” PUD/PO/I (Planned Unit Development/Professional Office/Institutional) 

Parcel ID #s:  15-21-28-7540-00-771; -772 
 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 

  

SUBJECT  

PROPERTIES 

61



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 14, 2017 

APOPKA HOLDINGS, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 8 
 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 
 

 
  

62



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 14, 2017 

APOPKA HOLDINGS, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 9 
 

 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 63



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 14, 2017 

APOPKA HOLDINGS, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 10 
 

 

 

 

 

EXISTING USES 

 

 

 

64



PLANNING COMMISSION 
AGENDA - FEBRUARY 14, 2017 
Page 65 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 
5. COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – SMALL SCALE – ADMINISTRATIVE FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – 

Owned by Smith Family Revocable Trust, applicant is the City of Apopka, from “County” Rural (1 du/10 ac) 
to “City” Agriculture (1 du/5 ac), for property located east of Mt. Plymouth Road, south of Boch Road.  
(Parcel ID #s: 06-20-28-0000-00-047; 06-20-28-0000-00-066) 

  

65



CITY OF APOPKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

   X    PUBLIC HEARING      DATE:  February 14, 2017  
          ANNEXATION      FROM: Community Development 
          PLAT APPROVAL      EXHIBITS: Land Use Report 
          OTHER:          Vicinity Map 
           Adjacent Zoning Map 
           Adjacent Uses Map 
           Adjacent/Proposed FLU Map 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT: COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – SMALL SCALE – ADMINISTRATIVE 
FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – SMITH FAMILY REVOCABLE 
LIVING TRUST  

     
PARCEL ID NUMBER: 06-20-28-0000-00-047 & 06-20-28-0000-00-066 
 
Request: COMPREHENSIVE PLAN - SMALL SCALE – ADMINISTRATIVE 

FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
    FROM: “COUNTY” RURAL (1 DU/ 10 AC) 
    TO:  “CITY” AGRICULTURE (1 DU/5 AC) 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY 
 
APPLICANT:    City of Apopka 
 
LOCATION:  East of Mt. Plymouth Road, south of Boch Road 
 
EXISTING USE:   Manufactured Homes/Grazing 
 
CURRENT ZONING:  “County” A-2 (ZIP) 
 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT: Manufactured Homes (existing) 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: “City” AG (Agriculture) (Note: this Future Land Use Map amendment 

request is being processed along with a request to change the Zoning Map 
designation from “County”A-2 to “City” AG [Agriculture].) 

 
TRACT SIZE:    4.01 +/- acres 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT UNDER  EXISTING: 1 dwelling unit per 10 acres 
ZONING DISTRICT:                         PROPOSED: 1 dwelling unit per 5 acres 
 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer     Finance Director   Public Ser. Director 
Commissioners (4)     HR Director    City Clerk 
City Administrator Irby    IT Director    Fire Chief 
Community Development Director   Police Chief    Recreation Director  
 
 
G:\CommDev\PLANNING ZONING\SMALL SCALE FLU AMENDS\2017\Administrative FLU 

 

 

 66



PLANNING COMMISSION – JANUARY 10, 2016 

SMITH FAMILY REVOCABLE LIVING TRUST – ADMINISTRATIVE FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 2 
 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  Policy 3.9 of the Apopka Comprehensive Plan 2030 requires that a “city” zoning 
and future land use classification be assigned to annexed properties. The subject property was annexed into the 
City of Apopka on December 29, 2010, through the adoption of Ordinance No. 2202.  Staff is requesting an 
administrative small scale future land use amendment for the subject property to comply with the policy set forth 
in the Comprehensive Plan. The proposed city future land use designation is comparable to the densities and 
intensities and uses allowed under the existing “county” future land use designation, and the proposed future land 
use amendment is compatible with the character of the surrounding area. 
 
The subject property is located in an area characterized as agricultural in nature, with “County” Rural future land 
use to the north and west of the subject property, and single-family residential to the east and proposed S.R.  
429\Wekiva Parkway south of the site. The existing and proposed use of the subject site for manufactured homes 
is a permitted use in the proposed AG zoning district and future land use designation and compatible with the 
surrounding zoning and uses. 
 
Staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that adequate public facilities exist to support this 
zoning change (see attached Land Use Report). 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The existing and proposed use of the property is consistent with 
“City” AG (Agriculture) Future Land Use designation and the City’s proposed Agriculture Zoning. 
 
SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  The request of the proposed rezoning would result in a number of residential 
units considered ‘de minimum’ and, therefore, a school capacity determination is not required for the subject 
properties. 
 
JOINT PLANNING AREA/OVERLAY: The subject property is located within the “Northern Area” of the Joint 
Planning Area with Orange County. The subject properties are not located within any other city overall or 
protection area.  
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any 
public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on December 9, 2016. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
February 14, 2017 – Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 
March 1, 2017 – City Council (1:30 pm) – 1st Reading 
March 15, 2017 – City Council (7:00 pm) – 2nd Reading 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
January 27, 2017 – Public Notice and Notification 
March 3, 2017 – Ordinance Heading Ad 
________________________________________________________________________________________ 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive Plan 
and compatible with the character of the surrounding area, and recommends approval of the change in Future 
Land Use from “County” Rural (1 du/ 10 ac) to “City” AG (Agriculture) (1 du/5 ac) for the property owned by 
Smith Family Revocable Living Trust. 
 
Note: This item is considered Legislative.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into and 
made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

  

67



PLANNING COMMISSION – JANUARY 10, 2016 

SMITH FAMILY REVOCABLE LIVING TRUST – ADMINISTRATIVE FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 3 
 

LAND USE REPORT 

 

I. RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (County) Rural (0 – 1 du/10 acres) A-2 Single-family home 

East (City) Agriculture (0 – 1 du/5 acre) A-2 (ZIP) Single-family home 

South (City) Rural Settlement (0 – 1 du/5 acres) (county) A-2 (ZIP) Proposed 429 

West (County) Rural Settlement (0 – 1 du/5 acres) A-2  Agriculture 

 

II. LAND USE ANALYSIS 
 

The general character of the area surrounding the subject property is compatible with the current 
agricultural uses.  The property is east of Mt. Plymouth Road, south of Boch Road. 
 
 Wekiva River Protection Area: No 
 Area of Critical State Concern: No 
 DRI / FQD: No 
 
 JPA: The City of Apopka and Orange County entered into a Joint Planning Area (JPA) agreement on 
October 26, 2004.  The subject property is located within “North Area” of the JPA.   
 
  Wekiva Parkway and Protection Act:   The proposed amendment has been evaluated against the 
adopted Wekiva Study Area Comprehensive Plan policies.  While located within the Wekiva River Basin Study 
Area, the subject property is not located within the Protection Area. The proposed amendment is consistent with 
the adopted mandates and requirements.  The proposed Future Land Use Map (FLUM) amendment has been 
reviewed against the best available data, with regard to aquifer and groundwater resources.  The City of Apopka's 
adopted Comprehensive Plan addresses aquifer recharge and storm water run-off through the following policies: 
 

 Future Land Use Element, Policies 4.16, 14.4, 15.1, 16.2 and 18.2 
 Infrastructure Element, Policies 1.5.5, 4.2.7, 4.4, 4.4.1, 4.4.2 and 4.4.3 
 Conservation Element, Policy 3.18 

 
Karst Features: The Karst Topography Features Map from the Florida Department of Environmental 

Protection shows that there are karst features on this property. 
 
 Analysis of the character of the Property:  The property fronts Boch Road. The vegetative communities 
present are urban; the soils present are Tavares-Millhopper Fine sand; and no wetlands occur on the site, and the 
terrain has a 0-5 percent slope. 
 
 The proposed amendment is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, including Policy 3.1.m Agricultural 
Future Land Use designation. 
 
 Analysis of the relationship of the amendment to the population projections: The proposed future land use 
designation for the Property is Agriculture (1 du/5 ac).  Based on the housing element of the City's Comprehensive 
Plan, this amendment will not increase the City’s future population.   
 
CALCULATIONS: 
ADOPTED (County designation): 1 Unit(s) x 2.659 p/h = 2.659 persons 
PROPOSED (City designation): 1 Unit(s) x 2.659 p/h = 2.659 persons 68



PLANNING COMMISSION – JANUARY 10, 2016 

SMITH FAMILY REVOCABLE LIVING TRUST – ADMINISTRATIVE FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 4 
 
 
 Housing Needs:   This amendment will not impact the housing needs as projected in the Comprehensive 
Plan.  One single family home is the maximum development anticipated for the subject properties. 
 
 Habitat for species listed as endangered, threatened or of special concern: Per policy 4.1 of the 
Conservation Element, a habitat study is required for developments greater than ten (10) acres in size.  This site 
is less than ten acres.  A habitat study will not be required at the time of a development plan application.   
 
 Transportation: The City of Apopka is a Transportation Concurrency Exception Area.  Refer to Chapter 
3 of the City of Apopka 2010 Comprehensive Plan. 
 
 Potable Water, Reclaimed Water & Sanitary Sewer Analysis: The subject property is located within the 
Orange County Utilities service area for potable water, reclaimed water and sanitary service.  The property owner 
will need to provide a letter from Orange County Utilities demonstrating available capacity prior to submittal of 
any development plan.  
 

 Sanitary Sewer Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard:  None ;   81 GPD/Capita; 
 81 GPD / Capita 

 
 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: City of Apopka                  
 

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:  196 GPD 
 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:  196 GPD 
 

4. Capacity available: Yes 
 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation:  81 GPD/Capita 
 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  81 GPD/Capita 
 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result if proposed amendment: None 
 
 Potable Water Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard:  City of Apopka ; 177 GPD/Capita; 
 177 GPD/Capita 

 
 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider:  City of Apopka   
 

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:  210 GPD 
 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:  210 GPD 
 

4. Capacity available: Yes 
 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation:  177 GPD/Capita 
 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  177 GPD/Capita 
 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: None 
 

8. Parcel located within the reclaimed water service area: Yes         
 
 
   69



PLANNING COMMISSION – JANUARY 10, 2016 

SMITH FAMILY REVOCABLE LIVING TRUST – ADMINISTRATIVE FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 5 
 
 

 Solid Waste 
 

1. Facilities serving the site: none  
 

2. If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: 
City of Apopka 
 

3. Projected LOS under existing designation:  4 lbs./person/day 
 

4. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  4 lbs./person/day 
 

5. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: None 
 
 This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of 
development approval. 
 

Infrastructure Information 
 
 Water treatment plant permit number: CUP No. 3217 
 
 Permitting agency: St. John's River Water Management District 
 
 Permitted capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  21.981 GPD 
 
 Total design capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  33.696 GPD 
 
 Availability of distribution lines to serve the property: Yes 
 
 Availability of reuse distribution lines available to serve the property:  Yes 
 

 Drainage Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site: None 
 

2. Projected LOS under existing designation:  100 year - 25 hour design storm  
 

3. Projected LOS under proposed designation: 100 year - 25 hour design storm  
 

4. Improvement/expansion: On-site retention/detention pond  
 
 Recreation 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; LOS standard: City of Apopka Parks System; 3 AC/1000 capita 
 

2. Projected facility under existing designation:  0.009 AC 
 

3. Projected facility under proposed designation:  0.009 AC 
 

4. Improvement/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: 
None 

 
This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of development 
approval. 70



PLANNING COMMISSION – JANUARY 10, 2016 

SMITH FAMILY REVOCABLE LIVING TRUST – ADMINISTRATIVE FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 6 
 

SMITH FAMILY REVOCABLE LIVING TRUST 
Boch Rd. 

4.01 +/- Acres 
Existing Maximum Allowable Development:  1 dwelling unit 
Proposed Maximum Allowable Development: 1 dwelling unit 

Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Change 
From: “County” Rural/Agricultural (1 du/10 ac) 

To: “City” Agriculture (1 du/5 ac) 
Proposed Zoning Change 

From: “County”A-2 
To: “City” AG 

Parcel ID #: 06-20-28-0000-00-047 & 06-20-28-0000-00-066 
 

VICINITY MAP 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Subject 

Properties 

71



PLANNING COMMISSION – JANUARY 10, 2016 

SMITH FAMILY REVOCABLE LIVING TRUST – ADMINISTRATIVE FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 7 
 

 

 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 72



PLANNING COMMISSION – JANUARY 10, 2016 

SMITH FAMILY REVOCABLE LIVING TRUST – ADMINISTRATIVE FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 8 
 

 

 

 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 73



PLANNING COMMISSION – JANUARY 10, 2016 

SMITH FAMILY REVOCABLE LIVING TRUST – ADMINISTRATIVE FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 9 
 

 

 

 

ADJACENT & PROPOSED FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Subject 

Properties 

74



PLANNING COMMISSION 
AGENDA - FEBRUARY 14, 2017 
Page 75 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 
6. 2017-1 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – Case No. 2017-1-3 & 4 - Owned by Smith Family Revocable 

Living Trust, from “County” A-2 (ZIP) (0-1 du/10 ac) (Agriculture) to “City” AG (0-1 du/5 ac) (Agriculture), for 
properties located east of Mt. Plymouth Road, south of Boch Road. (Parcel ID #s: 06-20-28-0000-00-047; 
06-20-28-0000-00-066) 

  

75



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

   X    PUBLIC HEARING      DATE:  February 14, 2017 
          ANNEXATION      FROM: Community Development 
          PLAT APPROVAL      EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 
          OTHER:          Vicinity Map 
           Adjacent Zoning Map 
           Adjacent Uses Map  
           Existing Uses 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT:   SMITH FAMILY REVOCABLE LIVING TRUST (CASE # 2017-1-3 & -4) 
     
PARCEL ID NUMBER: 06-20-28-0000-00-047 & 06-20-28-0000-00-066 
 

Request:   ADMINISTRATIVE REZONINGS 
    FROM:  “COUNTY” A-2 (ZIP) (0-1 DU/10 ACRES) (AGRICULTURE) 

TO:         “CITY” AG (0-1 DU/5 ACRES) (AGRICULTURE) 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY 
 
OWNER:   Smith Family Revocable Living Trust   
 
APPLICANT:   City of Apopka  
  
LOCATION:   East of Mt. Plymouth Road, south of Boch Road 
 
EXISTING USE:  Manufactured Homes/Grazing 
 
FUTURE LAND USE: Agriculture (0 - 1 du/5 acres) 
 
ZONING:   A-2 (ZIP) 
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT:  Manufactured Homes (existing) 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: AG 
 
TRACT SIZE:   4.01 +/- Acres 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING ZONING:  1 Residential Unit 
    PROPOSED ZONING: 1 Residential Unit 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

DISTRIBUTION 

Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director   Public Ser. Director 

Commissioners (4)    HR Director    City Clerk 

City Administrator Irby    IT Director    Fire Chief 

Community Dev. Director   Police Chief    
 

 

G:\CommDev\PLANNING ZONING\REZONING\2017\2017-1 Administrative Rezoning Cycle\Planning Commission 

  

76



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 14, 2017 
SMITH FAMILY REVOCABLE TRUST (CASE # 2017-1-3 & 4) – ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING 
PAGE 2 

 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  Policy 3.9 of the Apopka Comprehensive Plan 2030 requires that a “city” zoning 
classification be assigned to annexed properties. The subject properties were annexed into the City of Apopka on 
December 29, 2010, through the adoption of Ordinance No. 2202.  Staff is requesting an administrative rezoning 
for the subject property to comply with the policy set forth in the Comprehensive Plan. The proposed city zoning 
category is comparable to the densities and intensities and uses allowed under the existing “county” zoning 
classification, and the proposed zoning change is compatible with the character of the surrounding area. 
 
The subject property is located in an area characterized as agricultural in nature, with “County” A-2 zoning to the 
north and west of the subject property, and single-family residential to the east and proposed 429 south of the site. 
The existing and proposed use of the subject site for manufactured homes is a permitted use in the proposed AG 
zoning district and compatible with the surrounding zoning and uses. 
 
Staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that adequate public facilities exist to support this 
zoning change (see attached Zoning Report). 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE:  The proposed zoning classification is consistent with the Future 
Land Use Designation assigned to the property. 
 
SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  The request of the proposed rezoning would result in a number of residential 
units considered ‘de minimum’ and, therefore, a school capacity determination is not required for the subject 
properties. 
 
JOINT PLANNING AREA/OVERLAY: The subject property is located within the “Northern Area” of the Joint 
Planning Area with Orange County. The subject properties are not located within any other city overall or 
protection area.  
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION:  The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any 
public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on December 9, 2016.   
 
PROPERTY OWNER NOTIFICATION: The property owner was notified of this administrative rezoning and 
public hearing dates at least thirty (30) days prior to the adoption public hearing.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
February 14, 2017 – Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 
March 1, 2017 – City Council (1:30 pm) – 1st Reading 
March 15, 2017 – City Council (7:00 pm) – 2nd Reading 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
January 27, 2017 – Public Notice and Notification 
March 3, 2017 – Ordinance Heading Ad 
  ________________________________________________________________________________________ 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
The Development Review Committee finds the change of zoning consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and 
compatible with the character of the surrounding area, recommending approval of the change in Zoning from 
“County” A-2 (ZIP) to “City” AG. 
 
Recommended Motion:  Find the change of zoning to be consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and compatible 
with the character of the surrounding area, and recommend approval of the change in Zoning from “County” A-
2 (ZIP) to “City” AG for the Smith Family Revocable Living Trust properties. 
 
Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 
and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

  

77



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 14, 2017 
SMITH FAMILY REVOCABLE TRUST (CASE # 2017-1-3 & 4) – ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING 
PAGE 3 

 

ZONING REPORT 
 
RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (County) Rural (0 – 1 du/10 acres) A-2 Single-family home 

East (City) Agriculture (0 – 1 du/5 acre) A-2 (ZIP) Single-family home 

South (City) Rural Settlement (0 – 1 du/5 acres) (county) A-2 (ZIP) Proposed 429 

West (County) Rural Settlement (0 – 1 du/5 acres) A-2  Agriculture 

 
LAND USE &  
TRAFFIC COMPATIBILITY: The subject property fronts and is accessed by a local roadway (Boch Rd).  The 

land use is compatible with the surrounding properties because it is agricultural 
in nature. The zoning change will not affect traffic in the area. 

 
COMPREHENSIVE  
PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed AG zoning is consistent with the City’s Agriculture Future Land 

Use designation, which will be assigned along with this rezoning and with the 
character of the surrounding area and future proposed development. The AG 
zoning classification is one of the acceptable zoning categories allowed within 
the Agriculture Future Land Use category.   Development Plans shall not 
exceed the density allowed in the adopted Future Land Use Designation. 

 
AG DISTRICT 
REQUIREMENTS:  

Minimum Living Area: 1,200 sq. ft. (Single-family) 

400 sq. ft. (mobile home) 

Minimum Site Area: 5 acres 

Minimum Lot Width NA 

Setbacks: Front: 25 ft. (100 ft. non-residential uses) 

 Rear: 25 ft. (100 ft. non-residential uses) 

 Side: 25 ft. (100 ft. non-residential uses) 

 Corner 25 ft. (100 ft. non-residential uses) 

 

Based on the above zoning standards, the subject site is legal, 

nonconforming with code requirements for the AG district, because each 

property is under 5 acres. 

 

BUFFERYARD  

REQUIREMENTS: Uses including, but not limited to, kennels, livestock barn stables, and other 

similar uses shall be a minimum of 100 feet from all property lines.  Apiaries 

shall be located 200 feet from any property line.  All other yard setbacks shall 

be a minimum of 25 feet from the property lines. 

 

ALLOWABLE USES: Single-family dwellings, including mobile homes, and their customary acces-

sory structures, apiaries, kennels, crops and animal production and structures 

necessary for support and such production.  Livestock barns and stables, com-

mercial wholesale foliage plant production, and similar compatible uses. 78



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 14, 2017 
SMITH FAMILY REVOCABLE TRUST (CASE # 2017-1-3 & 4) – ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING 
PAGE 4 

 

 
 

Smith Family Revocable Living Trust   
4.01 +/- Acres 

Proposed Zoning Change: 
From: “County” A-1 (ZIP) (Agriculture) (21,780 sq. ft. min. lot) 

To: “City” AG (Agriculture) (5 acre min. lot) 
Parcel ID #: 06-20-28-0000-00-047 & 06-20-28-0000-00-066 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 
  

Subject 

Properties 

Subject Property 

79



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 14, 2017 
SMITH FAMILY REVOCABLE TRUST (CASE # 2017-1-3 & 4) – ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING 
PAGE 5 

 

 
 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 80



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 14, 2017 
SMITH FAMILY REVOCABLE TRUST (CASE # 2017-1-3 & 4) – ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING 
PAGE 6 

 

 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 
 

 

 

 

 

  

81



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 14, 2017 
SMITH FAMILY REVOCABLE TRUST (CASE # 2017-1-3 & 4) – ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING 
PAGE 7 

 

 

 

 

 

EXISTING 

USES 

 

 

 
 

 

 

82



PLANNING COMMISSION 
AGENDA - FEBRUARY 14, 2017 
Page 83 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 
7. 2017-1 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – Case No. 2017-1-1 - Owned by Mary M. Ashburn Ballings, from 

“County” A-2 (ZIP) (0-1 du/10 ac) (Agriculture) to “City” AG (0-1 du/5 ac) (Agriculture), for property located 
east of Mt. Plymouth Road, south of Boch Road. (Parcel ID #s: 06-20-28-0000-00-029) 

  

83



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

   X    PUBLIC HEARING      DATE:  February 14, 2017 
          ANNEXATION      FROM: Community Development 
          PLAT APPROVAL      EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 
          OTHER:          Vicinity Map 
           Adjacent Zoning Map 
           Adjacent Uses Map  
           Existing Uses 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT:   MARY M. ASHBURN BALLINGS (CASE # 2017-1-1) 
     
PARCEL ID NUMBER: 06-20-28-0000-00-029 
 

Request:   ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING 
    FROM:  “COUNTY” A-2 (ZIP) (0-1 DU/10 ACRES) (AGRICULTURE) 

TO:         “CITY” AG (0-1 DU/5 ACRES) (AGRICULTURE) 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY 
 
OWNER:   Mary M. Ashburn Ballings 
 
APPLICANT:   City of Apopka  
  
LOCATION:   East of Mt. Plymouth Road, south of Boch Road 
 
EXISTING USE:  Manufactured home 
 
FUTURE LAND USE: Agriculture (0 - 1 du/5 acres) 
 
ZONING:   A-2 (ZIP) 
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT:  Manufactured home (existing) 
 
PROPOSED 
ZONING:   AG 
 
TRACT SIZE:   2.10 +/- Acres 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING ZONING:  1 Residential Unit 
    PROPOSED ZONING: 1 Residential Unit 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

DISTRIBUTION 

Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director   Public Ser. Director 

Commissioners (4)    HR Director    City Clerk 

City Administrator Irby    IT Director    Fire Chief 

Community Dev. Director   Police Chief    Recreation Director   
 
 

G:\CommDev\PLANNING ZONING\REZONING\2017\2017-1 Administrative Rezoning Cycle\Planning Commission 

 

 84



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 14, 2017 
MARY BALLINGS (CASE # 2017-1-1) – ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING 
PAGE 2 

 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  Policy 3.9 of the Apopka Comprehensive Plan 2030 requires that a “city” zoning 

classification be assigned to annexed properties. The subject property was annexed into the City of Apopka on 

December 29, 2010 through the adoption of Ordinance No. 2201.  Staff is requesting an administrative rezoning 

for the subject property to comply with the policy set forth in the Comprehensive Plan. The proposed city zoning 

category is comparable to the densities and intensities and uses allowed under the existing “county” zoning 

classification, and the proposed zoning change is compatible with the character of the surrounding area. 

 

The subject property is located in an area characterized as single-family and agricultural in nature, with “County” 

A-2 zoning to the north, south, east and west of the subject property. The existing and proposed use of the subject 

site for a manufactured home is a permitted use in the proposed AG zoning district and compatible with the 

surrounding zoning and uses. 

 

Staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that adequate public facilities exist to support this 

zoning change (see attached Zoning Report). 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE:  The proposed zoning classification is consistent with the Future 

Land Use Designation assigned to the property. 

 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  The request of the proposed rezoning would result in a number of residential 

units considered ‘de minimum’ and, therefore, a school capacity determination is not required for the subject 

properties. 

 

JOINT PLANNING AREA/OVERLAY: The subject property is located within the “Northern Area” of the Joint 

Planning Area with Orange County. The subject properties are not located within any other city overall or 

protection area.  

 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION:  The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any 

public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on December 9, 2016.   

 

PROPERTY OWNER NOTIFICATION: The property owner was notified of this administrative rezoning and 

public hearing dates at least thirty (30) days prior to the adoption public hearing.   

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

February 14, 2017 – Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

March 1, 2017 – City Council (1:30 pm) – 1st Reading 

March 15, 2017 – City Council (7:00 pm) – 2nd Reading 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

January 27, 2017 – Public Notice and Notification 

March 3, 2017 – Ordinance Heading Ad 
  
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

The Development Review Committee finds the change in zoning to be consistent with the Comprehensive Plan 

and compatible with the character of the surrounding areas, recommending approval of the change in Zoning from 

“County” A-2 (ZIP) to “City” AG. 

 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 

and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 85



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 14, 2017 
MARY BALLINGS (CASE # 2017-1-1) – ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING 
PAGE 3 

 

ZONING REPORT 
 
RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (County) Rural (0 – 1 du/10 acres) A-2 Single-family home 

East (City) Low Density Residential (0 – 4 du/ acre) A-1 (ZIP) Single-family home 

South (County) Rural Settlement (0 – 1 du/5 acres) A-2 Single-family home 

West (City) Rural Settlement (0 – 1 du/5 acres) A-2 (ZIP) Grazing 

 
LAND USE &  
TRAFFIC COMPATIBILITY: The subject property fronts and is accessed by a local roadway (Boch Rd). Its 

land use is similar to the surrounding agricultural area, and will not affect 
traffic because there is an existing home on the property. 

  
COMPREHENSIVE  
PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed AG zoning is consistent with the City’s Rural Settlement Future 

Land Use designation and with the character of the surrounding area and future 
proposed development. The AG zoning classification is one of the acceptable 
zoning categories allowed within the Rural Settlement Future Land Use 
category.   Development Plans shall not exceed the density allowed in the 
adopted Future Land Use Designation. 

 
AG DISTRICT 
REQUIREMENTS:  

Minimum Living Area: 1,200 sq. ft. (Single-family) 

400 sq. ft. (mobile home) 

Minimum Site Area: 5 acres 

Minimum Lot Width NA 

Setbacks: Front: 25 ft. (100 ft. non-residential uses) 

 Rear: 25 ft. (100 ft. non-residential uses) 

 Side: 25 ft. (100 ft. non-residential uses) 

 Corner 25 ft. (100 ft. non-residential uses) 

 
Based on the above zoning standards, the subject site does not comply with 
code requirements for the AG district, therefore it will be a legal, 
nonconforming property. 

 
BUFFERYARD  
REQUIREMENTS: Uses including, but not limited to, kennels, livestock barn stables, and other 

similar uses shall be a minimum of 100 feet from all property lines.  Apiaries 
shall be located 200 feet from any property line.  All other yard setbacks shall 
be a minimum of 25 feet from the property lines. 

 
ALLOWABLE USES: Single-family dwellings, including mobile homes, and their customary Ac-

cessory structures, apiaries, kennels, crops and animal production and struc-
tures necessary for support and such production.  Livestock barns and stables, 
commercial wholesale foliage plant production, and similar compatible uses. 

  

86



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 14, 2017 
MARY BALLINGS (CASE # 2017-1-1) – ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING 
PAGE 4 

 
 

Mary M. Ashburn Ballings  
2.10 +/- Acres 

Proposed Zoning Change: 
From: “County” A-2 (ZIP) (Agriculture) (21,780 sq. ft. min. lot) 

To: “City” AG (Agriculture) (5 acre min. lot) 
                           Parcel ID #: 09-20-28-7608-00-050 
 

 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 
  

Subject 

Properties 

87



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 14, 2017 
MARY BALLINGS (CASE # 2017-1-1) – ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING 
PAGE 5 

 

 
 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

88



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 14, 2017 
MARY BALLINGS (CASE # 2017-1-1) – ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING 
PAGE 6 

 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 
 

 

 

 
  

89



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 14, 2017 
MARY BALLINGS (CASE # 2017-1-1) – ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING 
PAGE 7 

 

 

 

 

 

EXISTING 

USES 

 

 
 

 

 

90



PLANNING COMMISSION 
AGENDA - FEBRUARY 14, 2017 
Page 91 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 
8. 2017-1 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – Case No. 2017-1-2 - Owned by TIIFT, from “County” A-1 (ZIP) (0-

1 du/10 ac) (Agriculture) to “City” AG (0-1 du/5 ac) (Agriculture), for property located west of Mt. Plymouth 
Road, north of Swain Road. (Parcel ID #s: 05-20-28-0476-00-040) 

  

91



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

   X    PUBLIC HEARING      DATE:  February 14, 2017 
          ANNEXATION      FROM: Community Development 
          PLAT APPROVAL      EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 
          OTHER:          Vicinity Map 
           Adjacent Zoning Map 
           Adjacent Uses Map  
           Existing Uses 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT:   TIIFT (CASE # 2017-1-2) 
     
PARCEL ID NUMBER: 05-20-28-0476-00-040 
 

Request:   ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING 
    FROM:  “COUNTY” A-1 (ZIP) (0-1 DU/10 ACRES) (AGRICULTURE) 

TO:         “CITY” AG (0-1 DU/5 ACRES) (AGRICULTURE) 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY 
 
OWNER:   TIIFT (Trustees of the Internal Improvement Trust Fund) - DEP 
 
APPLICANT:   City of Apopka  
  
LOCATION:   West of Mt. Plymouth Road, north of Swain Road 
 
EXISTING USE:  Building/state land 
 
FUTURE LAND USE: Agriculture (0 - 1 du/5 acres) 
 
ZONING:   A-1 (ZIP) 
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT:  nonresidential building (existing) 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: AG 
 
TRACT SIZE:   9.27 +/- Acres 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING ZONING:  1 Nonresidential Unit 
    PROPOSED ZONING: 1 Nonresidential Unit 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

DISTRIBUTION 

Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director   Public Ser. Director 

Commissioners (4)    HR Director    City Clerk 

City Administrator Irby    IT Director    Fire Chief 

Community Dev. Director   Police Chief    Recreation Director 
 

 

G:\CommDev\PLANNING ZONING\REZONING\2017\2017-1 Administrative Rezoning Cycle\Planning Commission 
  

92



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 14, 2017 
TIIFT (CASE # 2017-1-2) – ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING 
PAGE 2 

 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  Policy 3.9 of the Apopka Comprehensive Plan 2030 requires that a “city” zoning 
classification be assigned to annexed properties. The subject property was annexed into the City of Apopka on 
September 5, 2007, through the adoption of Ordinance No. 1962.  Staff is requesting an administrative rezoning 
for the subject property to comply with the policy set forth in the Comprehensive Plan. The proposed city zoning 
category is comparable to the densities and intensities and uses allowed under the existing “county” zoning 
classification, and the proposed zoning change is compatible with the character of the surrounding area. 
 
The subject property is located in an area characterized as single-family and agricultural in nature, with “County” 
A-1 zoning to the east, north, south, and west of the subject property, and mobile home park to the east of the site. 
The existing and proposed use of the subject site for a nonresidential building is a permitted use in the proposed 
AG zoning district and compatible with the surrounding zoning and uses. 
 
Staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that adequate public facilities exist to support this 
zoning change (see attached Zoning Report). 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE:  The proposed zoning classification is consistent with the Future 
Land Use Designation assigned to the property. 
 
SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  The request of the proposed rezoning would result in a number of residential 
units considered ‘de minimum’ and, therefore, a school capacity determination is not required for the subject 
properties. 
 
JOINT PLANNING AREA/OVERLAY: The subject property is located within the “Northern Area” of the Joint 
Planning Area with Orange County. The subject properties are not located within any other city overall or 
protection area.  
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION:  The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any 
public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on December 9, 2016.   
 
PROPERTY OWNER NOTIFICATION: The property owner was notified of this administrative rezoning and 
public hearing dates at least thirty (30) days prior to the adoption public hearing.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
February 14, 2017 – Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 
March 1, 2017 – City Council (1:30 pm) – 1st Reading 
March 15, 2017 – City Council (7:00 pm) – 2nd Reading 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
January 27, 2017 – Public Notice and Notification 
March 3, 2017 – Ordinance Heading Ad 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
The Development Review Committee finds the change in zoning consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and 
compatible with the character of the surrounding area, recommending approval of the change in Zoning from 
“County” A-1 (ZIP) to “City” AG. 
 
Recommended Motion:  Finds the change in zoning consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and compatible 
with the character of the surrounding area, and recommend approval of the change in Zoning from “County” A-
1 (ZIP) to “City” AG for the TIIFT – Florida DEP property. 
 
Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 
and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 93



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 14, 2017 
TIIFT (CASE # 2017-1-2) – ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING 
PAGE 3 

 

ZONING REPORT 
 
RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Rural Settlement (0-1 du/5 acres) A-1(ZIP) Non-agriculture acreage 

East (City) AG (0 – 1 du/ 5 acre) A-1 (ZIP) State Lands 

South (County) Rural (0 – 1 du/10 acres) A-1 Two Single-family home 

West (City) Rural Settlement (0 – 1 du/5 acres) A-1 (ZIP) Non-agriculture acreage  

 
LAND USE &  
TRAFFIC COMPATIBILITY: The subject property fronts and is accessed by a local roadway (Swain Rd). It 

is similar in nature to the surrounding agricultural and natural land areas, and 
there should be no impact on traffic.    

 
COMPREHENSIVE  
PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed AG zoning is consistent with the City’s Rural Settlement Future 

Land Use designation and with the character of the surrounding area and future 
proposed development. The AG zoning classification is one of the acceptable 
zoning categories allowed within the Rural Settlement Future Land Use 
category.   Development Plans shall not exceed the density allowed in the 
adopted Future Land Use Designation. 

 
AG DISTRICT 
REQUIREMENTS:  

Minimum Living Area: 1,200 sq. ft. (Single-family) 

400 sq. ft. (mobile home) 

Minimum Site Area: 5 acres 

Minimum Lot Width NA 

Setbacks: Front: 25 ft. (100 ft. non-residential uses) 

 Rear: 25 ft. (100 ft. non-residential uses) 

 Side: 25 ft. (100 ft. non-residential uses) 

 Corner 25 ft. (100 ft. non-residential uses) 

 

Based on the above zoning standards, the subject site complies with code 

requirements for the AG district. 

 

BUFFERYARD  

REQUIREMENTS: Uses including, but not limited to, kennels, livestock barn stables, and other 

similar uses shall be a minimum of 100 feet from all property lines.  Apiaries 

shall be located 200 feet from any property line.  All other yard setbacks shall 

be a minimum of 25 feet from the property lines. 

 

ALLOWABLE USES: Single-family dwellings, including mobile homes, and their customary acces-

sory structures, apiaries, kennels, crops and animal production and structures 

necessary for support and such production.  Livestock barns and stables, com-

mercial wholesale foliage plant production, and similar compatible uses. 

 94



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 14, 2017 
TIIFT (CASE # 2017-1-2) – ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING 
PAGE 4 

 
 

TIIFT 
9.27 +/- Acres 

Proposed Zoning Change: 
From: “County” A-1 (ZIP) (Agriculture) (21,780 sq. ft. min. lot) 

To: “City” AG (Agriculture) (5 acre min. lot) 
                           Parcel ID #: 05-20-28-0476-00-040 
 

VICINITY MAP 

 
  

Subject Property 

95



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 14, 2017 
TIIFT (CASE # 2017-1-2) – ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING 
PAGE 5 

 

 
 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

96



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 14, 2017 
TIIFT (CASE # 2017-1-2) – ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING 
PAGE 6 

 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 
 

 

 

 

 

  

97



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 14, 2017 
TIIFT (CASE # 2017-1-2) – ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING 
PAGE 7 

 

 

 

EXISTING 

USES 

 

 

 
 

 

 

98



PLANNING COMMISSION 
AGENDA - FEBRUARY 14, 2017 
Page 99 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 
1. FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN - COOPER PALMS COMMERCE CENTER (LOT 5) – Owned by Property 

Industrial Enterprises, LLC and located south of Cooper Palms Parkway, east of South Bradshaw Road. 
(Parcel ID #s: 09-21-28-0868-01-260; 09-21-28-0868-01-250; 09-21-28-0868-01-240; 09-21-28-0868-01-
230; 09-21-28-1675-00-110; 09-21-28-1675-00-120) 

  

99



    

CITY OF APOPKA 

PLANNING COMMISION 

   
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

X PUBLIC HEARING  MEETING OF: February 14, 2017 

 ANNEXATION  FROM: Community Development 

 PLAT APPROVAL  EXHIBITS: Vicinity/Aerial Maps 

X OTHER: Final Development Plan   Final Dev. Plan 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

PROJECT: COOPER PALMS COMMERCE CENTER (LOT 5) FINAL 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

       
REQUEST:             RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE COOPER PALMS COMMERCE 

CENTER (LOT 5) FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY: 
 
OWNER:   Property Industrial Enterprises, LLC 
 
APPLICANT:   Michael R. Cooper; Property Industrial Enterprises, LLC 
 
ENGINEER:                        Hossein Tehraini, P.E. 
 
LOCATION: South of Cooper Palms Parkway, east of South Bradshaw Road 

 
PARCEL ID #:  09-21-28-0868-01-260; 09-21-28-0868-01-250; 09-21-28-0868-01-240; 
    09-21-28-0868-01-230; 09-21-28-1675-00-110; 09-21-28-1675-00-120 
 
FLUM: Industrial 
 
ZONING: I-1 
 
EXISTING USE:                    Vacant Land 
 
PROPOSED USE: Industrial Warehouses\Commercial Services 
 
TRACT SIZE:   .82 +/- acres  
 
RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 
 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North  Industrial I-1 Cooper Palms Sports Complex 

East  Industrial I-1 Vacant land 

South  Industrial I-1 Retention Pond 

West Industrial I-1 Cooper Palms Commerce Park 

__________________________________________________________________________________________  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director    Public Ser. Director 

Commissioners (4)           HR Director     City Clerk 

City Administrator Irby      IT Director     Fire Chief  

Community Dev. Director        Police Chief     Recreation Director 

   100



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 14, 2017 
COOPER PALMS COMMERCE CENTER LOT 5 - FDP 
PAGE 2 

 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  The Cooper Palms Commerce Center (Lot 5) site plan proposes an industrial 

warehousing building with sq. ft.  A total of 25 parking spaces are provided.  Per City Code, each a minimum of 

17 parking spaces must be provided. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
February 14, 2017 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

March 1, 2017 - City Council (1:30 pm)  
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

 

The Development Review Committee finds the Final Development Plan consistent with the Comprehensive 

Plan and Land Development Code and recommends approval of the Cooper Palms Commerce Center (Lot5) Final 

Development Plant, subject to the findings of this staff report. 

 

Recommended Motion:  Find the Final Development Plan consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and Land 

Development Code and recommend approval of the Cooper Palms Commerce Center (Lot 5) Final Development 

Plant, subject to the development condition and findings of this staff report. 
 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 

and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

101



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 14, 2017 
COOPER PALMS COMMERCE CENTER LOT 5 - FDP 
PAGE 3 

 
Application:  Cooper Palms Commerce Center (Lot 5) – Final Development Plan 

Owner:   Property Industrial Enterprises, LLC 

Parcel I.D. No’s:    09-21-28-0868-01-260; 09-21-28-0868-01-250; 09-21-28-0868-01-240; 

   09-21-28-0868-01-230; 09-21-28-1675-00-110; 09-21-28-1675-00-120 
Location:  South of West 2nd Street and west of South Hawthorne Avenue 
Total Acres:  0.82 +/- Acres 

 
 
 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SUBJECT 
PROPERTY 

Subject 

Property 

102



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 14, 2017 
COOPER PALMS COMMERCE CENTER LOT 5 - FDP 
PAGE 4 

 

 
AERIAL MAP 

 
Application:  Cooper Palms Commerce Center (Lot 10 and 11) – Final Development Plan 

Owner:   Property Industrial Enterprises, LLC 

Parcel I.D. No’s:    09-21-28-0868-01-260; 09-21-28-0868-01-250; 09-21-28-0868-01-240; 

   09-21-28-0868-01-230; 09-21-28-1675-00-110; 09-21-28-1675-00-120 
Location:  South of Cooper Palms Parkway, east of Bradshaw Road 
Total Acres:  +/- 0.82 Acres 
 

 

 

 

 

Subject 

Property 

103



104



105



PLANNING COMMISSION 
AGENDA - FEBRUARY 14, 2017 
Page 106 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 
2. FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN - COOPER PALMS COMMERCE CENTER (LOTS 10 AND 11) – Owned by 

Property Industrial Enterprises, LLC and located south of West 2nd Street and west of South Hawthorne 
Avenue. (Parcel ID #s: 09-21-28-0868-01-260; 09-21-28-0868-01-250; 09-21-28-0868-01-240; 09-21-28-
0868-01-230; 09-21-28-1675-00-110; 09-21-28-1675-00-120) 

  

106



    

CITY OF APOPKA 

PLANNING COMMISION 

   
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

X PUBLIC HEARING  MEETING OF: February 14, 2017 

 ANNEXATION  FROM: Community Development 

 PLAT APPROVAL  EXHIBITS: Vicinity/Aerial Maps 

X OTHER: Final Development Plan   Final Dev. Plan 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

PROJECT: COOPER PALMS COMMERCE CENTER (LOTS 10 AND 11) FINAL 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

       
REQUEST:             RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE COOPER PALMS COMMERCE 

CENTER (LOTS 10 AND 11) FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY: 
 
OWNER:   Property Industrial Enterprises, LLC 
 
APPLICANT:   Michael R. Cooper, Property Industrial Enterprises, LLC 
 
ENGINEER:                        Hossein Tehraini, P.E. 
 
LOCATION: South of West 2nd Street and west of South Hawthorne Avenue 

 
PARCEL ID #:  09-21-28-0868-01-260; 09-21-28-0868-01-250; 09-21-28-0868-01-240; 
    09-21-28-0868-01-230; 09-21-28-1675-00-110; 09-21-28-1675-00-120 
 
FLUM: Industrial 
 
ZONING: I-1 
 
EXISTING USE:                    Vacant Land 
 
PROPOSED USE: Industrial Warehouses\Commercial Services 
 
TRACT SIZE:   2.81 +/- acres  
 
RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 
 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (County) Industrial IND-4 CSX Railroad 

East (City) Commercial C-2 Church 

South (County) Low Medium Density R-2 Single Family Residential 

West (City) Industrial I-1 Industrial Warehouse 

__________________________________________________________________________________________  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director    Public Ser. Director 

Commissioners (4)           HR Director     City Clerk 

City Administrator Irby      IT Director     Fire Chief  

Community Dev. Director        Police Chief     Recreation Director 

   107



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 14, 2017 
COOPER PALMS COMMERCE CENTER LOTS 10 & 11 - FDP 
PAGE 2 

 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  The Cooper Palms Commerce Center (Lots 10 and 11) proposes two industrial 

warehousing buildings each approximately 6,800 sq. ft. gross floor area. Lot 10 is 60,694 sq. ft. and Lot 11 62,110 

sq. ft.  Lot 10 provides 25 parking spaces and Lot 11 20 parking spaces.  Per City Code, each site will need a 

minimum of 15 parking spaces. 

 

Development Condition:  Prior to issuance of a certificate of occupancy for a building on Lots 10 and 11, the 

property owner must provide a cross access easement over the portion of the vacated 2nd Street that allows owner 

of Lot 8 and the other owners of Coopers Commerce Park to travel upon the road. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
February 14, 2017 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

March 1, 2017 - City Council (1:30 pm)  
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

 

The Development Review Committee finds the Final Development Plan consistent with the Comprehensive 

Plan and Land Development Code and recommends approval of the Cooper Palms Commerce Center (Lots 10 & 

11) Final Development Plant, subject to the findings of this staff report. 

 

Recommended Motion:  Find the Final Development Plan consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and Land 

Development Code and recommend approval of the Cooper Palms Commerce Center (Lots 10 & 11) Final 

Development Plant, subject to the findings and development conditions of this staff report. 
 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 

and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

108



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 14, 2017 
COOPER PALMS COMMERCE CENTER LOTS 10 & 11 - FDP 
PAGE 3 

 
Application:  Cooper Palms Commerce Center (Lots 10 and 11) – Final Development Plan 

Owner:   Property Industrial Enterprises, LLC 

Parcel I.D. No’s:    09-21-28-0868-01-260; 09-21-28-0868-01-250; 09-21-28-0868-01-240; 

   09-21-28-0868-01-230; 09-21-28-1675-00-110 and 09-21-28-1675-00-120 
Location:  South of West 2nd Street and west of South Hawthorne Avenue 
Total Acres:  2.81 +/- Acres 

 
 
 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

SUBJECT 
PROPERTY 

109



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 14, 2017 
COOPER PALMS COMMERCE CENTER LOTS 10 & 11 - FDP 
PAGE 4 

 
Application:  Cooper Palms Commerce Center (Lots 10 and 11) – Final Development Plan 

Owner:   Property Industrial Enterprises, LLC 

Parcel I.D. No’s:    09-21-28-0868-01-260; 09-21-28-0868-01-250; 09-21-28-0868-01-240; 

   09-21-28-0868-01-230; 09-21-28-1675-00-110 and 09-21-28-1675-00-120 
Location:  South of West 2nd Street and west of South Hawthorne Avenue 
Total Acres:  2.81 +/- Acres 
 

 

 

AERIAL MAP 
 

 

Subject 

Property 

110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



PLANNING COMMISSION 
AGENDA - FEBRUARY 14, 2017 
Page 127 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 
3. PLAT – EMERSON PARK TOWNHOMES - Owned by Pulte Group, c/o Doug Hoffman, and located at 1701 

Ocoee Apopka Road. (Parcel ID #: 20-21-28-0000-00-001)  
 

 
  

127



CITY OF APOPKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: February 14, 2017 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Vicinity & Aerial Maps 

X OTHER: Plat   Final Plat 
  
SUBJECT:  EMERSON NORTH TOWNHOMES – PLAT 
    
REQUEST:  RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE EMERSON NORTH 

TOWNHOMES PLAT 
 

SUMMARY:  
 
OWNER/APPLICANT: Pulte Group c/o Doug Hoffman 
 
ENGINEER:   Donald W. McIntosh Associates, Inc. c/o John T. Townsend, P.E.  
 
LOCATION:   1701 Ocoee Apopka Road (South of S.R. 414 and West of Marden Road) 
 
ZONING:   Mixed-EC 
      
FUTURE LAND USE: Mixed Use (0-15 du/ac) 
 
EXISTING USE:  Planted Pine Trees 
 
PROPOSED USE:  Residential Townhomes Community (136) units & future public right-of-way 
 
TRACT SIZE: 21.42 +/- (17.1 acres in residential community; 4.24 acres for East Harmon Road 

ROW) 
 
DENSITY:   7.95 Units\Acre (136 units\17.1 acres) 
 
RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 
 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Central Florida Expressway R-O-W S.R. 414 

East (City) Mixed Use R-3 Vacant Land/Planted Pines Trees 

South (City) Mixed Use Mixed-EC Emerson Park/Single family houses and townhomes 

West (City) Central Florida Expressway R-O-W Vacant Land/Retention Pond 

 
 
FUNDING SOURCE:  
 
N/A  
 

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief  

128



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 14, 2017 
EMERSON NORTH TOWNHOMES – PLAT 
PAGE 2 

 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:   City Council approved a Final Development on December 7, 2017. The 
Planning Commission recommended approval of the Preliminary Development Plan on August 9, 2016.  
The Plat is consistent with the approved Preliminary and Final Development Plans.  After review of the 
Plat, the Development Review Committee found the Plat to be consistent with the Final Development Plan 
and Land Development Code.  
 
PROJECT SUUMARY:  The Emerson North Townhomes development is a two phase project proposing 
136 townhome units with 3.12 +/- acres of active and passive recreation and open space within a 17.1 +/- 
acre site.  Comprising a total of 21.42 acres, the Final Development Plan reserves the northern eighty feet 
of the northern project line for a future public right-of-way.  A developer’s agreement establishes a process 
for the dedication of the right-of-way to the City and addresses fair-share compensation of the right-of-way 
dedication and road construction.  Proposed design plans for the Harmon Road East Extension include 
aesthetic brick pavers at intersections and a concept landscape plan.  Final details of the roadside and median 
landscaping and materials will be addressed by the end of January 2017. 
 
SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  Except for any plat application that addresses only the northern public 
right-of-way to be dedicated to the City of Apopka, a plat or building permit involving a residential structure 
shall not be released for recording with the County Comptroller until such time that a concurrency 
mitigation agreement has been approved by Orange County Public Schools (OCPS). 
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION:  The County was notified at the time of the land use amendment 
and rezoning applications for this property.  Coordination occurred with County planning staff regarding 
impact on adjacent parcels.  Orange County also receives a copy of the Development Review Committee 
agenda. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
February 14, 2017 – Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 
February 15, 2017 – City Council (6:00 pm) 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 

The Development Review Committee finds the Plat to be consistent with the approved Final Development 
Plan and Land Development Code, recommending approval of the Emerson North Townhomes Plat. 
 
Planning Commission:   Find the Emerson North Townhomes Plat consistent with the Land Development 
Code and recommend approval of the Plat subject to the findings of the staff report. 
 
Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 
into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

129



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 14, 2017 
EMERSON NORTH TOWNHOMES – PLAT 
PAGE 3 

 

EMERSON NORTH TOWNHOMES 

 21.42 +/- Acres (17.1 acres residential\4.24 future R.O.W) 

Proposed Number of Units: 136 

Parcel ID#: 20-21-28-0000-00-001 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

130



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 14, 2017 
EMERSON NORTH TOWNHOMES – PLAT 
PAGE 4 

 

AERIAL MAP 

 

 

 
 

131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



PLANNING COMMISSION 
AGENDA - FEBRUARY 14, 2017 
Page 139 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 
4. PLAT – ORCHID ESTATES - Owned by JTD Land at Orchid Estates, LLC, and located south of Kelly Park 

Road, west of Jason Dwelley Parkway.  (Parcel ID #s: 18-20-28-0000-00-055; 18-20-28-0000-00-059; 18-
20-28-0000-00-117 Portion)  

  

139



CITY OF APOPKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: February 14, 2017 
X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 
 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Vicinity & Aerial Maps 
X OTHER: Plat   Final Plat 

  
SUBJECT:  ORCHID ESTATES - PLAT 
    
REQUEST:  RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE SANDPIPER ROAD 

SUBDIVISION - PLAT 
 

SUMMARY:  
 
OWNER/APPLICANT: JTD Land at Orchid Estates, LLC 
 
ENGINEER:   Engineering & Environmental Design, Inc., c/o Larry T. Ray P.E. 
 
LOCATION: South of Kelly Park Road, west of Jason Dwelley Parkway 
 
PARCEL ID NUMBERS: 18-20-28-0000-00-055; 18-20-28-0000-00-059; 18-20-28-0000-00-117 Portion 
 
EXISTING USE:  Vacant 
 
FUTURE LAND USE:  Residential Very Low Suburban (0-2 du/ac) 
 
CURRENT ZONING:  Planned Unit Development  
 
PROPOSED AMENDMENT: 112 single family lots 
 
TRACT SIZE:   Combined total Acreage: 60.82 +/- Total Acres 
     
 
RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 
 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (County) Low Density Residential A-2  Grazing 

North (County) Low Density Residential A-1 SFR 

East (County) Low Density Residential R-CE SFR 

South (County) Low Density Residential R-1AAAA SFR 

South (City) Res. Very Low Suburban R-1AAA SFR 

West (County) Low Density Residential A-2 SFR 

 
FUNDING SOURCE:  
 
N/A  
 

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief  

140



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 14, 2017 
ORCHID ESTATES SUBDIVISION – PLAT 
PAGE 2 

 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  The Orchid Estates Plat proposes 49 single family residential units and is 

consistent with the amended Master Plan\Preliminary Development Plan approved by City Council on 

October 5, 2016.  The Orchid Estates Subdivision is located within a Planned Unit Development Zoning 

District and will consist of a minimum 70 feet wide lots with a minimum lot size of 7,500 S.F. and a 

minimum living area of 1,500 S.F.   

 

Access:  Ingress/egress for the development will occur from internal public roads connecting at one location 

– Sandpiper Road.  All subdivision roads are owned and maintained by the homeowners association. 

 

Stormwater:  The stormwater management system includes on-site retention areas designed to meet the 

City’s Land Development Code requirements. 

 

School Capacity Report:   This residential project is exempt from school concurrency because 

development applications were submitted to the City prior to the effective date of the school concurrency 

program.  School impact fees will be collected with each building permit application. 

 

Recreation Space:  The developer is providing a total of 21.51 acres of passive and active recreational 

areas which includes a tot lot and common open space areas. 

 

Environmental:   The developer must obtain a habitat management plan and gopher tortoise relocation 

permit application to the Florida Fish and Wildlife Commission prior to commencing any site construction 

activity. 

 

Orange County Notification:  The JPA requires the City to notify the County any public hearing or 

advisory board consideration of a Subdivision Plan that is adjacent to Unincorporated Orange County.  The 

County has been notified via DRC agenda. 

 

Buffer/Tree Program:  A 17.2 acre site (Tract “F”) was reserved for open space to preserve trees, and the 

City exempted the PUD\Master Plan from the arbor preservation requirements.  A ten foot wide  

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
Planning Commission – February 14, 2017 5:30 p.m. 

City Council – February 15, 2017    6:00 p.m. 

  

141



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 14, 2017 
ORCHID ESTATES SUBDIVISION – PLAT 
PAGE 3 

 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
The Development Review Committee finds the Orchid Estates Plat to be consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan, Land Development Code, and Master Plan\Preliminary Development Plan and 
recommends the approval of the Orchid Estates- Plat, subject to submittal of a School Concurrency with 
Orange County School Board. 
 
Recommended Motion:  Find the Orchid Estates Plat to be consistent with the Land Development Code 
and recommend approval of the Orchid Estates Plat. 
 
Planning Commission Role:  The role of the Planning Commission for this development application is to 
advise the City Council to approve or deny, based on consistency with the Comprehensive Plan and Land 
Development Code. 
 
Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 
into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 142



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 14, 2017 
ORCHID ESTATES SUBDIVISION – PLAT 
PAGE 4 

 

 
Orchid Estates Subdivision 

60.82 +/- Acres 
Proposed: 112 units 

Parcel ID #s:    18-20-28-0000-00-055; 18-20-28-0000-00-059; 
18-20-28-0000-00-117 Portion 

 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 
 

 

 

Subject 
Property 

143



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 14, 2017 
ORCHID ESTATES SUBDIVISION – PLAT 
PAGE 5 

 

 

 

AERIAL MAP 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

144



145



146



147



148



149



PLANNING COMMISSION 
AGENDA - FEBRUARY 14, 2017 
Page 150 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 
5. PLAT – SANDPIPER ROAD SUBDIVISION - Owned by Florida Land Trust #111, ZDA at Sandpiper, LLC, 

and located north of East Votaw Road, west of North Thompson Road.  (Parcel ID #s: 03-21-28-0000-00-
023; 03-21-28-0000-00-119; 03-21-28-0000-00-015; 03-21-28-0000-00-046; 03-21-28-0000-00-073; 03-21-
28-0000-00-072; 03-21-28-0000-00-022; 03-21-28-0000-00-047; 03-21-28-0000-00-131; 03-21-28-0000-
00-106)  

  

150



CITY OF APOPKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: February 14, 2017 
X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 
 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Vicinity & Aerial Maps 
X OTHER: Plat   Final Plat 

  
SUBJECT:  SANDPIPER ROAD SUBDIVISION - FINAL DEVELOPMENT 

PLAT 
    
REQUEST:  RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE SANDPIPER ROAD 

SUBDIVISION - FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAT 
 

SUMMARY:  
 
OWNER:   Florida Land Trust #111, ZDA at Sandpiper, LLC 
 
APPLICANT:   Madden, Moorhead & Stokes, Inc. 
 
ENGINEER:   Madden, Moorhead & Stokes, Inc.c/o David A. Stokes, P.E. 
  
LOCATION:   North of East Votaw Road and west of North Thompson Road 
 
PARCEL ID NUMBERS: 03-21-28-0000-00-023; -119, -015, -046, -073, -072, -022, -047, -131, -106 
 
FUTURE LAND USE: Residential Very Low Suburban (0-2 du/ac) 
 
ZONING:   PUD/R-1A (Residential) 
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT: 49 Single Family Residential Lots 
 
TRACT SIZE:   58.23 +/- acres 
 
RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 
 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (County) Low Density Residential A-2  Grazing 

North (County) Low Density Residential A-1 SFR 

East (County) Low Density Residential R-CE SFR 

South (County) Low Density Residential R-1AAAA SFR 

South (City) Res. Very Low Suburban R-1AAA SFR 

West (County) Low Density Residential A-2 SFR 

 
FUNDING SOURCE:  
 
N/A  
 

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief  151



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 14, 2017 
SANDPIPER ROAD SUBDIVISION – PLAT 
PAGE 2 

 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  The Sandpiper Road Subdivision Plat proposes 49 single family 

residential units and is consistent with the Master Plan\Preliminary Development Plan approved by City 

Council on July 20, 2016.  The Sandpiper Road Subdivision is located within a Planned Unit Development 

Zoning District and will consist of a minimum 85 feet wide lots with a minimum lot size of 11,500 S.F. and 

a minimum living area of 2,200 S.F.  Minimum developable lot area is 10,000 S.F. for lots 29 to 37.  

Development standards for the subdivision are based on the approved Sandpiper Road Subdivision Master 

Plan and the Land Development Code. 

 

Access:  Ingress/egress for the development will occur from internal public roads connecting at one location 

– Sandpiper Road.  All subdivision roads are owned and maintained by the homeowners association. 

 

Stormwater:  The stormwater management system includes on-site retention areas designed to meet the 

City’s Land Development Code requirements. 

 

School Capacity Report:   A school concurrency mitigation agreement must be obtained from the Orange 

County Public Schools prior to recording of the plat. 

 

Recreation Space:  The developer is providing a total of 21.51 acres of passive and active recreational 

areas which includes a tot lot and common open space areas. 

 

Environmental:   The developer must obtain a habitat management plan and gopher tortoise relocation 

permit application to the Florida Fish and Wildlife Commission prior to commencing any site construction 

activity. 

 

Orange County Notification:  The JPA requires the City to notify the County any public hearing or 

advisory board consideration of a Subdivision Plan that is adjacent to Unincorporated Orange County.  The 

County has been notified via DRC agenda. 

 

Buffer/Tree Program:  Residential lots will be cleared on a lot-by-lot basis, as required by development 

standards within the Master Plan\Preliminary Development Plan.   The Master Plan reserves over 18 acres 

for open space within Tract “A”, and a thirty foot wide conservation easement on the south and east project 

line protects trees located therein.  Residential lots will be cleared on a lo-by-lot basis with a tree survey 

provided with the residential plot plan.  A mitigation fee, if required, shall be calculated and paid prior to 

the recording of a plat. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
Planning Commission – February 14, 2017 5:30 p.m. 

City Council – February 15, 2017    6:00 p.m. 

  

152



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 14, 2017 
SANDPIPER ROAD SUBDIVISION – PLAT 
PAGE 3 

 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
The Development Review Committee finds the Sandpiper Road Subdivision Plat to be consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan, Land Development Code, and Master Plan\Preliminary Development Plan and 
recommends the approval of the Sandpiper Road Subdivision- Plat, subject to submittal of a School 
Concurrency with Orange County School Board. 
 
Recommended Motion:  Find the Sandpiper Road Subdivision Plat to be consistent with the Land 
Development Code and recommend approval of the Sandpiper Road Subdivision- Plat, subject to submittal 
of a School Concurrency with Orange County School Board. 
 
Planning Commission Role:  The role of the Planning Commission for this development application is to 
advise the City Council to approve or deny, based on consistency with the Comprehensive Plan and Land 
Development Code. 
 
Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 
into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

153



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 14, 2017 
SANDPIPER ROAD SUBDIVISION – PLAT 
PAGE 4 

 

 
Sandpiper Road Subdivision 

58.23 +/- Acres 
Proposed: 49 units 

Parcel ID #s: 03-21-28-0000-00-023; 03-21-28-0000-00-119; 03-21-28-0000-00-015; 
03-21-28-0000-00-046; 03-21-28-0000-00-073; 03-21-28-0000-00-072; 
03-21-28-0000-00-022; 03-21-28-0000-00-047; 03-21-28-0000-00-131; 
03-21-28-0000-00-106 

  

 

  

Subject Property 

154



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 14, 2017 
SANDPIPER ROAD SUBDIVISION – PLAT 
PAGE 5 

 

 

 

 

 

AERIAL MAP 

 

 

 
 

155



156



157



158



159



160


	Top
	1 02-14-17 - PC - Minutes - January 10, 2017 Reg Mtg
	PC 01-10-17 Minutes.pdf

	2 02-14-17 - PC - Minutes - LDC Workshop w/CC
	CC-PC 01-25-17 Workshop Minutes.pdf

	1. 02-14-17 - PC - Public Hearing - Comp Plan Amendment - Capital Improvement Element
	1 5 Year CIP Amendment - PC - 2-14-17.pdf
	2 APPENDIX 7-1 Rvsd.pdf

	2. 02-14-17 - PC - Public Hearing - Large Scale FLU - Project Orlando, LLC
	1 Project Orlando LLC - LS FLU - PC 2-14-17.pdf

	3. 02-14-17 - PC - Public Hearing - Small Scale FLU - Apopka Holdings, LLC
	1 Apopka Holdings LLC - 1109 S Park &amp; 157 Rand Ct -  FLU - PC 2-14-17.pdf

	4. 02-14-17 - PC - Public Hearing - ZON - Apopka Holdings, LLC
	1 Apopka Holdings LLC - 1109 S Park &amp; 157 Rand Ct -  ZON - PC 2-14-17.pdf

	5. 02-14-17 - PC - Public Hearing - Small Scale Administrative FLU - Smith Family Revocable Trust
	1 Smith Family Revocable Trust -  FLU - PC.pdf

	6. 02-14-17 - PC - Public Hearing - 2017-1 Admin Rezoning - Smith Familty Revocable Living Trust
	3 017-1-3 &amp; 4- Smith Family Revocable Trust.pdf

	7. 02-14-17 - PC - Public Hearing - 2017-1 Admin Rezoning - Mary M. Ashburn Ballings
	1 2017-1-1- Mary M Ashburn Ballings.pdf

	8. 02-14-17 - PC - Public Hearing - 2017-1 Admin Rezoning - TIITF
	2 2017-1-2- TIIFT.pdf

	1. 02-14-17 - PC - Site Plans - Final Development Plan - Cooper Commerce Center, Lot 5
	1 Cooper Palms Commerce Center Lot 5 FDP 2 14 17.pdf
	2 Cooper Palms Commerce Facility Lot 5 FDP.pdf

	2. 02-14-17 - PC - Site Plans - Final Dev. Plan - Cooper Palms Commerce Center Lots 10 &amp; 11
	1 Cooper Palms Commerce Center Lots 10 &amp; 11 FDP 2 14 17.pdf
	2 Cooper Palms Commerce Park (Lots 10 and 11) FDP.pdf

	3. 02-14-16 - PC - Site Plan - Plat - Emerson Park Townhomes
	1 Emerson North Townhomes - Plat - PC 02-14-17.pdf
	2 Emerson North Townhomes - Plat.pdf

	4. 02-14-17 - PC - Site Plans - Plat - Orchid Estates
	1 Orchid Estates Plat - PC 02-14-17.pdf
	2 Orchid Estates Plat.pdf

	5. 02-14-17 - PC - Site Plans - Plat - Sandpiper Road Subdivision
	1 Sandpiper Road Subdivision Plat - PC 02-14-17.pdf
	2 Sandpiper Plat.pdf

	Bottom

